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tIAKE BA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual R€portr and Fln6nchl Stttamcnts
For thr yc.r cndcd Jun€ 3o,2023.

I. ACRONYMS. ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TER,MS
A: Acronyms and Abbrwlatlons

cEo

ICPAK

IPSAJ

KN 85

LBDA

MD

NT

oA6

OSHA

PFM

PPE

PSAS B

5AGAs

5C

Chief Executive Officer

lnrtitute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya

lnternational Public Sector Accountrng Standards

Kenya National Bureau of Statistics

Lake Basin Development Authority

Managing Director

National Treasury

Office of the Auditor General

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2OO7

Public Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standardr Board

Semi-AutonomouJ 6overnment Agencie,

State CorporationJ

\
8: Glorsary of Tcrms

Flduclrry Managem€nt' Memberr of Management directry entrurted with the responsibirity of
financial resources of the organization

Comparatlvc Year. Meang the prior period.

l



UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annull Report, rnd FinrnciEl Statement,
For the year ended June 30. 2023.

2. KEY TAKE BAJIN DEVETOPMENT AUTHORITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Backgroundinformatlon
The Lake Basin Development Authority was establirhed by an Act of Parliament (cap 2142) on the 3lrt

of August 1979. The Lake Basin Development Authority is domiciled in Kenya and has branches in

Nzoia Basin, Yala Nyando/Sondu basin and Kuia Migori/Kibuon Tende Basin.

The organization's area of iuriJdiction covers a land area of approximately 39,000 Km2 with an

ertimated population of 16.2 million people (KN85. 2Ol9). This region is endowed with an immense

relource base, which include Land, water and human resourcer. which could anchor and ttimulate

economic Growth in the baJin area and the entire country'

(b) PrinclpllActlvltlet
The vision. misrion and core values of Lake Basin DeveloPment Authority are aJ followj:

vtstoN
To be a leader on Justainable intetrated socio-economic development in Kenya.

MrSSlON

To foster integrated rocio-economic programmes and proiects throuth turtainable utilization and

management of natural rerourceJ with appropriate technologies for improved livelihoods of
communities within the Lake Victoria batin.

COREVALU6
The core values can be abbreviated as PICRITE and is broken down as follows:

a Parsion

o Professionalism
a lntegrity
a Curtomer focus

a Rejpect
a lnnovation
a Teamwork
a Efficiency

(c) IGV MsnaSement
The Lake Basin Development Authority day-to-day manatement iJ under the following key organs:

- Board of Directort
- Managing Director
- Management Team

(d) FlduclaryManagement
The key management perronnel who held office durinS the financial year ended 30'h June 2023 and

who had direct fiduciary retponsibility were:

lv



UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annurl Reportl rnd Flrundll Stlt mcntJ
For the ye.r cnded Junc 30,2023.

No. Deslgnatlcn Name
l. Managing Director CPA Wycliffe Ochiaga
2 Head of Corporate ,ervicer. CPA Chrirtine Otieno
3 Head of 5upply Chatn ManaSement Mr. Raymond Ndolo
4 Head Planning, Rerearch & 5trategy Mr. Maurice Obaso
5 Head Agriculture & Natural Resourcel Mr. Philip Oloo
6 Head lntemal Audit CPA Victor Bwire

7
Head of Engineerlng Services & infrartructure
development Eng. Jacob Akuno

8 Head Human Relource Mr. Henry Makori
9 He6d Adminirtration Mr. Edwin Olang
to Head of Commercial Services Ml. Beatrice Okoko
lt Head of Legal tervlcer Mr. Michael Okuk

(e) Fldudary Ovenlght Anantcmcnt
The Authority ha, four commlttee, with lpeclfic oversight responribilitles. These are:o Human R8Jo.rre Commtttee

. Flnance & Budpt Commlttee

. Phnnlng Stratqgl & Darelopnent Commlttee
o Audtt Commtttee.

(0 Lake Barln Deve&cpment Authority Hcldqlrarter,
P.O. Box l5l64OtOO
lbnyakwar
Kirumu - lGkamega Road
Kirumu. KENYA

G) lake Basln Dwelopnent Authorlrty Contac$
Tefephone : (254) OZO-2O23414
Mobile : O7t5-682555/O135-711g33
E-mail : info@lbda.go.ke
Webslte : www.lbda .so.k€

(h) lakc Badn Darclopment Authorlty Banken
l. National Bank of lQnya Limited

Kirumu Eranch

P.O. Box ll52-4Ot0O
Kirumu, lknya

Kenya Commercial Bank
Kirumu Branch

P.O Box l7 40lOO
Kirumu, Kenya

2
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3 CooperEtive Bank of lknya
Kisumu Branch

P.O Box l5ll 40l(X)
Klsumu. lknya

(0 tndcpadent tudlton
Audhor Genenl
Offlce of the Atditor General

Annfuenary Tor,ve6, Unlvenity Way
P.O. Box 3O084

6PO 00100
Nalrcbl. lGnya

(D klndp.l Lqd Adt lter

The Attomey General

ttate Law Office
Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box loll2
€lty fuuarc 0o2O{)

Nairobi. knya
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UKE RA'IN DEVEIOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Rcports ard Flnrnd.l Strt mcnt
For the !,Ear andcd Jun€ 30,2023.

3. THE BOARD OF DIR.ECTOR5

MRJAME DIANGA
(Chalnnan of thc Board)
ln@ilA,&o,
D.O.B: 24t Septembcr 1955
hofstuttal Qullfutlont

20O4To date- Coordinator/Dlr€<tor Kilumu youth Olympic Centre
April 2022-Augurt 2023- County Coordinator UDA party'Siaya
Crime preventlon - Clty of Gothenburg, Sweden
Social Worker - fuele kommun. Sweden
Offlce furirt nt - Social Democratlc party of Sweden
Summer,iob - fuele kommun. Sweden
Medical Attendant - fuele kommun, Sweden
Legal Office furirtant - Hith Court of ltnya
1977- t98t- F

o Masters Degree rn phirosophy Incorporatint: lntemationar Rerationl (major).
Politicrl science. Economrc Hinory, conflict Relo[ution aid cultu."r Geography. 

' -'-
o Bachelor of Science. Economic Hktory. conflict Rerorution and curturar deo'gript y.tlbt* ttpcrtetle

ter Contrcl Operator - knvr Alr Force (KAF)
2 cPA U/YCUFFE OCHIAGA

(t€cldrry to thc Bo!d)
D.O.B:1986

Q.amafiont
. Mrrter Burineg Adminlrtratlon

Bachelor of Buslnes Admtnlftatton (lT)
cPA(K)

Member ICPAK
Experlence

Dec 2022-To4ate: Managing Director - LBDA
)an 2O22-Dec 2O22: Oirector lntemal Audit - LBDA
June 2O2l-Dec 2022: Principal Intemal Audit - LBDA
Jan 2Ol8-May 2O2l: Director Audit, Ritk and Assurance-Clyde & furociates EA LLp
Jan 2Ol7-Dec 2017: Head of Grants Accounting-LVCT Health
Jan 2ol6'Dec 2o16: Senior Grants & compliance officer-Elizabeth GlaJer pediatric AIDS
Foundation(EGPAF). TIMIZA 9O program
Dec 2olo'Dec 2015: Senior 6rantr Accountant-columbia Univeruity-rntemational center
for AIDS Care and Treatment program (lCAp)

o Dec 2OO8-Dec 20lO: Acco ntant-Trevor and Ree, Conrultin

a

U/ork

u
3 sAnAruON@

Al/Erp/EDlrdw
D.O.B: 9tlr January t987
ho&onal Qpllfutlotts
o Humln Rightr Law (LLM)
. Port Graduate Dlploma in Law

o Bachelor's Degee in Law (LLB)
W*Ettptle,tw
o 2O2l-To date- Principal State Counrel - Minirtry of Agriculture &Livestock Dwelopment

nlel - Civil Liti(ation2O15-2O2O: Senior State Cou

vlt

Department , Oflice of The Attomev.General
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UKE SA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annurl R€portr and Flmndll Statem€ftt,
For the year ended Junc 30, 2023.

and Department of Justice-Kisumu Regional Office
o 2Oll-2O15 State Counsel - Civil Litigation DePartment. Office of The Attomey'General and

Department of Justice-Klsumu Regional Office
ADJ UNCTy'r'OLUNTARY WORK
o 2O21-2022 - Advocates Training Program/Bar Exam Marker'Council of Legal Education

c 2O1*2O18 - Pro-Bono Lawyer-Legal Support Network' KEIIN KENYA
o 2O12-2022 - Pro-Bono Lawyer-Centre for Sports Law
o 2O16-2020: Senior State Counsel - Civil Lititation Department, Office ofThe Attorney-General

and rtment of JuJtice-Kisumu onal Office
u/tulsoMoNDt oRo\I/E
(Chalrperson Audlt Commtttee)

h*pt*ilAMbt
D.O.B: l4th May 1983
hofesdoml Qrollf,atlon
o Bachelor of Eusiness Management (Purchasing and Supplies Management Option)

. Diploma in Cuttomt Clearing and Forwarding
Wo*Erydene
o 2Ol7 to date -Managint Director Bluerange Connect Limited
. 20lO to 2Ol7 - Manadn8 Director Bluerange Loginicl Limited
o 2O06 to 2OIO-M.na$n8 Director Neptune ForwardeB Limited
o 2OO3 to 2004 - lmport Manager Treasure Cargo Servicel

2OO2 to 2OO3 - Declaration Officer Air maritime Ke Limited
5 IAVENDER,OJATIA

(Chalrpenon Human Resorre Commlttee)
ln@eilAr*br
D.O.B: 276 November 1984
hoMotpl Qtullfutlon
o 2022- PhD Candidate, University of Nairobi

c 2016- 2018 MA Intemational Relationr. USIU
c 2O12- 2015 BA Political Science, University of Nairobi
o 2OO9- 2OlO Diploma in Project Management. KeMU
l*&Exfdene

o June 2Ol4- Dec 2O21- Benard Frank - Audit, Tax and Management firm
o Senior Manager - Public Sector and lntemational Policy Advisor
o Feb 2Ol4 - Nov 2Ol5 Trocaire lntemational Kenya Adminittrative Manager
o 2O16 - December 2O2O - Great Levels CEO Ltd - Nairobi, Ken cEo

TERESA BITUTU OROO
h@mtArctor
D.O.B: F January 1959

, Prof*dotplQtnllllatbn
il . Teacher's Certificate in Early Childhood Education Certificate in Early Childhood

Education
lUo*Wene
. March 2Ol9 - March 2022 : Member of The Board of Management ltierio GirlJ Secondary

. )an 2OO2 - Jan 2003 : Constituency Conrtitutional Committee Member Conttitution of Kenya

Review Commission
c )an 2OO2 - Jan 2OO3 : Federation of lGnya Women Lawyen Civic Educational Provider
o March 2OO4 - Dec 20O6 : Office of The President Member of Panel of Elders for land Dispute

6

Tribunal Suneka Division

vllt



UKE RA'IN DEVEIOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Rcporf and Flnrndsl Stlt rncntt
For the ycar endcd Junc 30, 2O23.

2009 - to date : Manager Angelic TercheB Colle8e
7

*fi
ENG.ROEERT KIPCHIRCHIR, uMo
(Chalrpenon Flnance and Budget Cornmlttee)
ln@entDhdw
D.O.B: 2d January 1984
hofsdot tl Q,ollfutbn

2Ol3- 2Ol7 - Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineeri nt
January - July 2OO8 Lenya Armed Forcer Technlcal College
october 20O7 - Computer Aided Deritno January 2OO3 - November 2OO5 - Diploma in Mechanical Engineering ( plant option)

Vot*Expetlctle
. AuSurt- Oaober 2004 - Kalmorl Te! Ertlteo October - December 2004 - plnafric Hotel
o December 2005 - February 20O6 - rtanley Hotelo February 2006 - February 20O7 - Shleffeld Steel Jyrtem Arrirtanto February 2OO7 - January 2OlO - Deprrtment of Defenre (Army Aviatlon)o January 2010 - January 2oll - Chlef Engineer Baobab Beach Resorto February 2OIl - July 2013 - Emerald Hotek

I
o Jan 2014 - 2O2l - Team Dlrector Green Coun Conrtruction Ltd

JUUU' CI-IACI{A CJAERTEL
h@aentDhutor
D.O.B: 4n Aprll 1976
hoMonal Qwllfutbn

2016 - 2017 - Post graduate Diploma in legal practice

o 2OO7 -
wot*EtWttctw
o 2OlO - 2013 - Lawyer at Notrry Republlc and Commirrionero 2Ol4 - 2016 - Lawyer at Pacethl

2018 -2021 - at A6APE- shl
LUIGOUXOOBONG'O
h@ttDtAor
D.O.8: 8n AWurt t959
holdonalQallbtb,

o 2Ol4 - 2Ol5 - Pre- Kenya School of law. Compliance Certificate
2oll - Bachelor of law LLB Degree

9

....o . 1979 -1980 . Nyanza Commerclal College Book leepint Account,
IWEtW*,rw

. Preridential County Chief Atent Kisumu County 2022 Electiono Farmint and Businesr County Coordlnator for UDA party Kirumu Countyo Elected Member of County fulembly as a Councilor. Self-Employment- Farming and Eurinest

. Salei Manager at the lcny. National fusunnce Company Ltdo Alico lnsurance Company Ltd - Accountant
Account clerk at lGnya Portr and ColDomti

lx

on Account Clerk at Kenya Rallwaw



UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annull R€portr rnd Flnandll ttatcment,
For the year etded June 30. 2023.

FRANCIS OKEDI OIGYE
ln&fndent Dltecar
D.O.B: 26s November 1972
Wo* Expdene

. September 2009 - 20lO - Teacher at Katilu Boys High School
o November 2OO6 - September 2OO9 - Pro,iect Manager at Watoto

Wahranga
o July 2005 - November 2005 - Project Coordinator at Watoto Walwanga

Au st 1998 - Jul 20O5 - Centre Head at Lwan B town
il IvIAURICEOPONDOODT OR

Al/F,tm/€ Dhstor
D.O.B: 186 9eptembdr 1972
hoMonal Qnllllatlon

. Tottori univerrity certificate in APPropriate ManaSement of Land and

Water ReJourcet for Effective Utilizatlon in Arid and Semi'Arid Landl
o Diploma in Proiect Manatement

o KIMC,P6D - Masr Communication
o ACCA Diploma in Financial Management
. Higher Diploma in Human Resource Management

Wo*Explene
. )uly 2022 - ActinS Director, IrriSation Water Management
. April 2Ol8 - Deputy Director. lrrigation Water Manatement
. February 2017 - April 2018 - Senior furistant Dir€ctor. Land Reclamation
. July 2014 - July 2O16 - Senior Water Relearch Officer
. 56November 2014 - 2Ol7 - AJrirtant Director, Land Reclamation
. November 2014 to July 2014 Principal land Reclamation Officer
o November 2oll to October 2ol2 - Programme Officer
. November 2OO7 to April 20O8 - Chief land reclamation officer' Ministry of water and

irritation
. January 2005 - October 2OO7 - Senior Agricultural Officer Ministry of Atriculture
o October 1997 - December 2OO4 - Lecturer, Animal Health and lnduttry

July 1996 - October 1997 - 6raduate Teacher I
EBELOCHIENG
ln@entDl,r,lor
D.O.B: 4m AuSutt '1988

hofettbnel Q.affiatlon
o 2O18 - 2021: Bachelor of Human Resource Management
o 2O14 - 2016: Diploma in Human Rerource Management

o 2oll: Manatement Studies (M|AMS)
ll/o*Eryr*t@
o November 2O2O to Date: Human Resource Manager, One Horizon Africa
o October 2019 to AuSutt 2O2O: Human Resource Manager' APHRC & Amp: Beula Group

June 2Ol8 to Ausurt 2Ol9: AJrittant Human Resource Manager. Asanda Global Aeencies

t2
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UKE RA'IN DEVEIOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Rcportt and Flmndll ttltancntr
For tha !ra!r cridcd Junc 3o.2023.

HEllIl.l tttAI(ONE
lr@tA,ew
D.O.B: 2d May t959
ho@aelQcllfutbt

o 1979- l98l: Universlty of Nairobi (Bachelor of Arts (Economicr and
Sociolog'y)

o 2O0t- Henley Management College, United Kingdom (UK) (Diploma in
Management)

o 20o5 - Higher Diploma in Human Rerource Management (lpM)
..-o .2O12 - MBA - Finalin. (Henley Management Collete, UK)
lUot*Eryeiqa
o 2O15-2018: Director, L.ke Victor.l. South Water Service, Boardo 20ll2Ol5: Member of UN Women Civil Society Advkory Groupo 2012-2O13: Executive Dircctor Maendeleo ya Wanawake Organizationo 2@6- 2013: Treaturer Maendeleo ya Wanawake Nyanza province.
c 2OO9- 2OlOr Conrultrnt for UNDp Speclal Unlt SSC, Neur york
o 2OOl- 20O5: ConJtitution of lknya Revieyv Commirrion (CKRC)o 1994-1996: Proje<t Manater (lknyr centralizatlon proied), the standard chartered Bank

lGnya, Ltd., Moi Avenue, Nairobi.
o l99l- 1992: Branch Manager - Nakuru, jtandard Chartered Banko 1989-1991: Branch Manager - Old Mutual. Standlrd Chartered Banko 1986-1989: operationr Manager -Ha[e sera'ie Avenue, standard chartered Banko 1985-1986: Trade Finance Department-Kenyatta Avenue. standard chartered Banko 1984-1985: 5ub Accountant-Kiinathl Street, Standard Chartered Banko 1984: Jub Accountant - Wenlands, itandard Ch.rter€d Banko 1983 - 1984: Gradurte Trarnee - l(€richo, Standard Chartered Bank

t4 IJ^AC KOCO
It@,ilA,a@
D.O.B: 166 Jurr 1974
hofsdonal Qultlratbto 2019-Date Moi Univenlty Doctor of phllorophy in Communlcation studle,

(ongoing)

2ol3'2o22 county (rovemment Executive commrttee Member for Educatlon and of
Tranr-Nzola ICT
2ol5'2o18 county Go\remment Executive commlttee Member for Health of rranr-Nzoh
2OO9-2O12 Moi Uni\rcRtty Lecturer Mol Unive6ity
2OO7 -2OO9 TSC Lecturer Eldoret Polytechnlc
2OO3-2OO7 T5C Teacher Kapcheola nret Secondary School

o 2OOI-20O4 Mol Unlverity Master of philolophy in Communicrtion Studle,o 2ooo-20o1 Moi univenity Port Gradu.te Diproma in Human Resource Managementc 199$1998 Moi Uniwrity Bachelors of Education Artr
tPOt*Etpcttctle

l5 JACTCON SW Dt XEDOGO
h*pettdctttDhaw
D.O.B: 28n Deccmber,l 96S
hofsdotpl QtoilAadon

o 2Ol9-2O21 KCA Univenity Bsc, Degree public Management
2Ol5-2016 KCA Univerrity Diploma County Govemance

County Management2Ol2 KCA Un iverrity Certificate in

xl



LAKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annull Rlport lnd Flnandrl Stltem.ntt
For tt€ !rc.r .nd€d Jun€ 30. 2023.

. 2012 KNEC Examinafion lntemational General Certificate of Secondary Education (IGCSE)

Wo*Fx*tbze
2Ol7-2O22 Re-elected as Member of County Arrembly(MCA)Kabwareng ward' Nandi
Served as chairman Public lnvettment Committee in Nandi County fusembly

2Ol3-2O17 Elected as member of County fusembly(McA) lGbwareng ward. Nandi county
5erved as chairman Public lnvestment Committee in Nandi County fusembly
2OO7-2O12 Chairman Transport and Ditarter Mantgement Nalrobi City Council

2OO7 -2012 Elected ar councilor Mathare,Nalrobi County
19962016 Mechanical Endneerinl.Yuruf sarsqe-Nairobi

l6

t7

l8

REErcCAGHATI T,iAROA
(Chalrperon Phnnlng, Jtrat€8y lnd DareloPrnent Commtttee)
h*pttdctttDfuxtor

I D.o.B, t9z+
t hodonal Qtallfutlon

c 2016 - Date University of Nairobi PhD in Progrelr
o 2010- 2Ol2- University of Nairobi Masten of Art (LinSuirti6)
o 2OO$ 2008- Univenity of Nalrobi Bachelor'r degree (Englith Literature)
o 1996 - 1998 - 5t. Markr T.T.C (Kigan) P.T.E Certificate (Pl)

Wor* E)?cafe.re
. 2022 to Date Govemor Candidate MiSori County
o 2Ol7 -2022 County Executive Committee Member (CECM) for Water, Energy'

Environment, Natural Retources, Climate Change And Ditaiter ManaSement
o 2Ol5 - Ocl2Ol7 County Director of Gender and Equality MlSori County 6ovemment
. 2O14 - 2015 Kitii Univerityi Leaurer School of Education
o 2012 - 2Ol3 Tarag'anya Girls Secondary School
o 2oo7- 2008 Tarang'anya Boys Secondary School
. 2@2 - 2007 Tarani'anva primarv School

SAMUilGTTAU
Altaru/E Atdu
D.O.B:1965
ho&otpl Qullllatlon

o 2ool-2oo3-UniveBity of Makerere - MA in Economic Policy Management
o I999-2OOGUniveRity of BotJwana - Pott Graduate Diploma in Population

and Surtainable Dwelopment
. 1987-1990 - University of Nairobl: BA Economlcs

Vb*f*plerc
r December 2016 to DEte - The Natlonal Trearury
o October 201 3 to D€cemb€r 2Ol 6 - Office of the DePuty Prerident
. May 2OO5 to Octob€r 2013 - Minktry of Jurtice. National cohesion and conttitutional

Affain
. July l99l - May 2OO5 - Mlnifi of PlanninS and National Dwelopment

Rose Muongen
AlEmaEDhator
DOB:1972
ho fetdorp I Qua I lf,a ttoa

I . Prerent - Doctor of Philosophy (PhD.) in Dwelopment Studiet Jomo lcnyatta
University of Agriculture & Technology (JKUAT)

in Proiect Plannin82Ol2 - 2Ol4 - Marter', Degree

xu

and Management University of Nairobi



UKE ENIN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Rcports and Flmndll Jtrtcmcnt
For thc ycrr cndcd Jun 30. 2023.

o 1993.- 1995 - Diploma in Educaflon. (Home Economics and physicar Educ.tion) xrtumo
Teacher College

t*bt*Etper*rw
o 2O22-To dale - Deputy Dlrector Regional Dwelopment Department of Reglonal

Development - State Deprrtm€nt for AjALr and Reglonal Development.o 2O2l-2O22 - Deputy Director youth for youth Developmentt poliry, Research and
Malnjtreamint Drrectorate: Head of polcy and JtEtety Divkron iiate Department for
Youth.
2ol9'2o2o ' D€puty Director Deployed ar the fuiistant Technical Adminirtrator at the
Office of the Cablnet Secret!ry Minlrtry of publlc Servlce and Gender
2ol7'2o18 - Deputy Director of youth Development: poliry, st.tegy Rerearch and youth
Mainrtreamint. Dlvirlon. strt€ Department for youth Mlnlitry of public service. youth and
Gender Affalr. Head Office, Nrlrobi-f.enya.
2016-2017 - Senior furlstant Dlrector of youth Development: youth Empo\ rerment,
Partlcipatlon and Social Dwelopment Dlvislon, Directonte of youth Minirtry of public
Servlce. Youth and C,ender Affairs. Head Office, Nalrobl-lcny..
2ol3-2o15 ' Prlncipal Youth Development off,cer. rlter furrrtant Drr€ctor- Mrnirtry of
Devolution andPlanning (Youth M.inrtrermint Divirion sEcoNDED to the poliry hlannlrg
and HeElthcrre Financing Dlr€ctorate Mlninry of Health- HerdqusrteR) in charge of youti
and Gender Mainrtresmlnt.

2OO1 - 2@4 - Bachelor of Artr
Univerrity

2OO7-2O13 - Departm
Devolution and Plann

in Education, (Home Economlcr and English) Kcnyatta

a ent
lnr

ol Youth Development and Empourerment. -Kenya Mininry of
. Head Office. Nalrobi
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4. ,\AANAGEMENTTEAM

IVIANAGEME.IT TEAM

CPA UTYCUFFE OCHIAGA

MsnaSlng Dlreclor
ICPAK Mgnb€rshlp No.

Quallllatfan
. Mattert ButinetJ AdminiJtration
r Bachelor of EuJinett AdminiJtration (lT)

. CPA(K)
o Member ICPAK

2 CPA CHRISTINE O'NENO
Dlrcdor. Corporate servlcaj

ICP X McrnbcBhlp No. lot70
Qutllfralbv

. MBA-StrateticManagement

PG Diploma in Banking

B. Com-Accountins & AuditinS

cPA (K)

Member ICPAK

? MR- ltlAURlCE OEAJO
Dlrector. PlrnninS, Rcjeffd & stntc8y.

Qtellfutlotlt
o Masters of BusineJJ AdminiJtration 5trateSic Management

. Bachelor of ArtJ Marketing

4 MR" PHTUP O. O|.oO
Dlr€€tor. Agrlarlture & Nlturrl R€tolrc!,
Qnllfiatlotzs

. MaJterr- Project Planning & Management

. BSc. Horticulture & ASriculture

5 M'. BEATRICE OKOKO
Dlrcctor. Commddal Scwlces

Qurilfutlot t
. MarterJ- Proiect Planning & MansSement
. Eachelor of ButineJ, Administration - Finance

o Advanced Diploma in Burinett Adminittration
o Member of PRSK

6 ENG. JACOB AKUNO
Dlrrctor. Endn€€rtng tervicct & lnfrartructur. DarcloPment
Quallfutlottt

. MaJteri of Engineerint in integrated Water Rerource Manatement

. Bachelor of Science in Agricultural EngineerinS?

. Member IEK EBK. AEK AWC, CIWEM, AAVE

7
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MR. RAYMOND NDOLO
Dlreaor, Supply Chrln McmS€rnent.

QullfrationJ
. Bachelor of Commerce - Marketing Management

. Port 6raduate Diploma- LoSinicJ Manatement
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tvtAN GE /IENT TEAM

D iploma lnvertment Analyri, & Portfolio Manatement
. Member K|SM

*.

CPA VICTOR 8VIP.E

I
Ag. Dcputy Dlructo.. lntcmal Audlt
Quallfutlont

o Bachelor of BurinerJ AdminiJtr.tlon
. CPA(K)

Member of ICPAK

)

MR. ANDREIV OSORO

9

Deputy Dlrc<tor. Corpo.rt Aftlrt
Qullbtbtt

. Bachelor of ArtJ MlJr Communicltion

. Diploma. M.rr Communicltion

MR. HE}IRY MAI(G)RI

t0

Dcputy Dlrcctor. Hurnan Rrsourcc
Qaallfutlottr

. Marterj in Human Rerource management
r Eachelor in Hum6n Rcjource Mrnlgement

M€mber.lHRM

MR. EDWIN OIAN6

ll
DcPtny DlIrctor. Adnhlrtntlon Scrvlccs

Qullhtbnr
. Eachelor of Artr. - D"v€lopment ttudie,

l2

MRMrcHAELOI(UK
Deuty Dlrlctor. l.trl tcrvk.,
Qutlltutbrt

o Diploma in Law
. CertlfiGte in Lrw
. KCE Dw III
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5. CHAIRMAN'J STATEMENT

On behalf of the Lake Basin Development Authority (LBDA) Board of

DirectorJ, I am pleased to Pretent the Financial report for Financial Year

2022/23. This was a special year where we witnessed tranJition to a new

Government, non the less. LBDA continued executing its mandate of

coordinating meaningful development in the Kenyan Portion of the Lake

Victoria Basin. The Authority's Performance for the year was remarkable despite the long

transition period and the drought that ravaSed most Parts of the Country'

The Authority had a total Budget of Kshl l.l billion which was funded by the Exchequer and

supplemented by our internally generated revenue (Appropriation in Aid). Through this

Budget. LBDA implemented a number of projectt that touched the lives of the people in the

region. Firstly, the Drought Mitigation Projects whereby the Authority was Drilling and

Equipping Boreholes in vulnerable arear to cushion the communities aSainst unpredictable

weather changes experienced due 6lobal warming. Another project that we implemented ir

the Kimira oluch Smallholder Farm tmprovement Project (KOSFIP) whose main Soal i5 to

enhance sustainable income levels for the rural households and thus help in alleviating poverty

in Homa Bay County. Other projects we are currently implementinS are; the Solar lrrigation

Projects and the construction of Nyakoe and Amariba Markets.

Our social retponsibility to the communities around ut remaint key. Our organization has

partnered with other Government organizations and private agencies to plant tree seedlings

in several counties in the region in line with Government commitment of to combat the effectt

of climate change hence contributing to the intended 15 Billion trees by 2032.

The year also saw my appointment to lead the new LBDA board of Director by his excellency

the President and I commit to provide sound leadership and rteward LBDA to prosperity in

line with Government Agenda. I would like to express our gratitude to you all for your

continued belief in our organization. I would also like to thank the management and ttaff ar

well ar members of the Board for their diligence and commitment to the success of LBDA.

Mr, Jamer
T
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6. REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECLMVE OFFICER,

The Lake Basin Development Authority is a premier 6overnment agenry

which is one of the six Regional Development Authoritie, mandated to
coordinate sustainable development activitiej on the Kenyan portion of
the Lake Vidoria basin. There activities are aimed at promoting
rural-urban balance strategier. employment creation. household food

tecurity and hence the creation of wealth and bringing about socio-economic tranJformation
that empoweru communities. I therefore on behalf of the Management and staff of the LBDA.

I am delighted to share with you highlighti and financial performance for the Financial year

2022/2023.

During the financial year, LBDA had an approved printed ertimate of Kshs.l.l3 Billion with
Kshs. 693.3 Million and Kshs. 438.9 Miflion for Recurrent and Development Budgetr
re5pectively' This enabled the Authority to implement its projectr and programs acro$ the
region. As highlighted by the chairman in hir statement. our financial performance in the year

was affected by the Government tranrition period and the drought, we rtill remained
steadfast in carrying out our mandate. The Good performance witnerred is attributed to
initiativer implemented by LBDA which were geared towards improving efficiency in ,ervice
delivery. our (rategies included technological interventions and collaboration with key
stakeholders. The automation of LBDA procesre, enabled the Authority to improve ,ervice,
and subsequently changing lives for the better. some of the technologies implemented during
the period include the launch of the. Enterprire Resource planning (ERp), and the Lipa na

Mpesa platform.

LEDA also entrenched a performance management culture that enhanced accountability and
productivity of the rtaff, thus driving the performance. rJUe have also improved the welfare of
LBDA staff by harmonizing their remuneration with the rest of the civil lervice and this was
possible by enhanced Treasury releases for our recurrent Budget.

The role LBDA playl in the region is Key and our broad mandate enabler us to implement
multi Jectoral proiectJ ar envisioned in our strategic plan which are aligned to the Government
Development Agenda ofthe Bottom up Economic Agenda (BETA), The vision 2o3o and the
vision 2063. Key projects funded by the National rreasury included: The Lichota Muhoroni
and Alupe Solar lrrigation Project (Kshs. 7r,9 Million), KosFrp (Kshs. 4o Million),
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Construction of Nyakoe (Kshs.l3.5 Million) Market and Conrtruction of Amariba Market (Hsh.

I3.5 Million).

The Authority wat only able to achiwe success in performing the above activitiei through the

rupport extended by its stakeholders. I wish to sincerely take thir oPPortunity to thank the

National Treasury and Planning. I would also like to extend my sincere apPreciation to the

variour rtakeholders both in Government and private t€ctor that have made this Financial

year a succetJ.

Managlm Dnaor. 13DA

L
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7. STATEMENT OF IAKE BA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PERFORMANCE AGAINST
PREDETERMINED OEJECTIVES FOR FI 2O22NO23

Lake Basin Development Authority ha, three itrategic pillarJ and obiectivei within the current Strategic
Plan for the 2Ol8- 2023. There rtrategic pillars are as follows:
o People and Community
. Finance and Economic Activity
o Environmental SuJtainability

Lake Basin Development Authority develops itJ annual work plans based on the above three pillar3.
AJJessment of the Board's performance aSainJt itJ annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. Lake
Basin Development Authority achieved itr performance tartetr 5et for the FY 2022/2023 period for it,
four Jtrategic pillars, as indicated in the diagram below:

Achlevementr ln Fl 2022-23

-2No meetings were held with 05IEPE practical

action to renritize the community on production

of commercial fodder production in Muhoroni

area.

- ln September 2022, LBDA and other

ttakeholders/innitutionJ were hojted by United

Destiny Shapers (UD5)- Nyalenda CBO to

conduct awareness campaigns on Environmental

conservation.

- ln September 2022. LDBA joined other

,takeholderr/ inititutions in markint the 5th

World Bamboo Day. held in Rapogi village.

Wert Songhor location, Kisumu county. A total

of lOO0 tree ,eedlintr were planted to protect

the Rapogi river banks.

- ln April 2023. LBDA joined other stakeholders

in celebrating the 2Oth commemorative day of
Lake Victoria in Korowa. Nyando Sub-county.

Kisumu county where a total of 200 seedlings

were planted and a further 3O0 donated to

nearby schools for planting.

StNo Acttulty / Target Performance lndlcaton

lmprove awareness

of conJervation

-No of meetings held with

€ommunitier.

-No of Environmental DayJ

ortanised in partnerJhip

with stakeholders.

Promotion of -No of water harvesting -4No community water proiectJ were
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5/No Actlvity / TarSet Fedormance lndicator Achlevement ln Fl 2022-23

adaptation

strateSiei to climate

change

Jtructures developed to

lncrease level of

community reJilience.

-No of tree seedlings

produced / dirtributed and

planted

No. of collaborations/

partnerships that promote

building of resilience

among livestock farmerl

within the lake basin region

developed in Uasin 6ishu and MiSori countiei aJ

livelihood improvement proiects.

-537 ,8lO assorted tree seedlings were produced

at the headquarters and the reSion, for plantint

and dirtribution.

-3797 high yielding grafted mango and

avocado seedlinSs were produced for

dirtribution to the local community and other

LBDA customert to increase resilience to climate

change.

Developed a partnerJhip/collaboration with

Alliance Bioverrity and CIAT (lnternational

center for Tropical Agriculture) in the Promotion

of the cultivation of early maturing improved

forater that are adaptive to different climatic

conditions among livertock farmers

3 Promoting

environmental

protection and

contervation

through

partnerrhips with

stakeholders

-No. of Corporate Social

ReJponribility activitieJ on

Environment.

-No of indigenout tree

seedlings produced and

planted in schools and

community homesteadt.

-LBDA supported tree plantint initiatives by

donatint over 20,000 aJJorted tree seedlings to

schools and communitieJ. The reedlings were

planted to increaJe tree cover within the lake

barin region. The locationi included Kitale and

Cherangani Water Users in Trannzoia County'

Homa Bay county, Butula Constituency in Busia

County. ASK showSround-Kirumu County,

Kakamega forert in Shinyalu

Sub-County,Muhoroni and Ka,iulu hills both in

Kisumu county.

4 Protect River bank.

water bodies and

catchment areaJ-

Lentth or area reJtored,

secured and conserved in

Km or Ha.)

LBDA collaborated in tree reedlingr Planting

exercise along Auji (Wi8wa) River in Nyalenda

(Kisumu County) in October 2022 to

commemorate the l0th anniversary of

Environment & Land court existence in Kisumu
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5/No Actlvlty / Taryet Performance lndlcator

5 Promote use of

Sreen energy

No of solar irrigation

proiecti developed.

6 Promote suitainable

utilisation and

manaSement of
natural retourceJ.

-No of feasibility studies

done

-No of concept paper

developed.

7 Mearure to mitigate

atainJt all forms of

negative effecti of

proiects on the

physical and social

environment.

-No of Environmental

lmpact Assessment (ElA)

repOrtj reviewed and

comments rubmitted to

NEMA-

8 Promote warte

management

initiatives.

No of waste disposal

places,/ equlpment in place.

AchievementJ ln tl 2O22-23

A total of l00O tree seedlings were planted.

-A further 20O reedlingr were donated for

planting to rertore the degraded areas of Kajul

hills (Ksm county) to mark the world

environment day in June 2023.

The division is in the proces, of operationalisinl

the solar irrigation project in Muhoroni, where

tilling of land to plant maize and vegetable crop

i, in protresr.

-2No concept paperr were developed. (l)

Commercial Fodder production in Muhoroni

and (2) Up scaling of the conrervation of Kibuon

and Tende rivers Catchments in Homa Bay

County. The latter wal Jubmitted to the

planning division for forwarding to the African

Water Facillty (AWF) as a call for proposals on

Climate ReJilient Water & Sanitation Projectj-

-lNo EIA rtudy report on the proposed Anyiko-

Ujwanga-Kathieno irrigation project in Sihay

location, Ugenya 5ub- county. Siaya County. waJ

reviewed and commentr rubmitted to NEMA in

May 2O23.

-Agriculture &. Natural Resources division in

collaboration with the Administration rerviceJ

division oversaw the ertablirhment of a warte

dumprite for collection and incineration of solid

wartes generated within the LBDA headquarte6

through the cleaning services and ground

maintenance offered by two companies-

namely: 5tarise 5olutions Ltd and Ashali Cleaners

Agency.

I
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8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

At Lake BaJin Development Authority (LBDA), the practice of good corporate Sovernance ensureJ the

delivery of Jurtainable value as well as meetinS the needs of our stakeholders. LBDA ir committed to

enruring that the needs of our customers and the expectations of our stakeholders are met while

tafeguarding the invertmentJ of the Government of Kenya through the adoption of ethically driven

business policies, procedures and processes. We believe that our burineJt affairs should be carried out

in a fair, tranrparent and accountable manner. lt is our integral retponribility to dirclose timely and

accurate information on our financial and performance as well as provide the leadership and effective

governance for the Authority.

ThiJ report hithlithtJ the main corporate Sovernance ttructuret and practicet that tuide the Board.

C.ovemance Prlncloles and Guidelines

The Board provides overright to the Management and enJureJ the employees oPerate within the Code

of Conduct and Ethics: Public Officers and Ethics Act: Leadership and lntegrity Act; and MwonSozo

Code of 6overnance for State Corporations.

ln diJcharyint its mandate, the Board is guided by the Board Charter, Code of Conduct and Ethicl' and

Board Manual to effectively fulfil its corporate governance responJibility towards stakeholders. ln

addition. it has adopted 6uidelines on Corporate 6ovemance developed by the Mwongozo Code of

Govemance for State Corporations

Board OrSanlzatlon and Jtnrture

Board Slze, Compotitlon snd Appolntment

The composition of the Board shall be in accordance with the provisionr of the LBDA Act, No. 442 of
2Ol2 and the state corporation Act, chapter 446laws of the Republic of lGnya or any other leSal

framework as rhall be determined by the relevant AuthoritieJ.

The Board should ensure that:

a) lts members can act independently;

b) Each Board member underttands the broad outline of the orSanization's Policiet:
c) Each Board member iJ in good JtandinS proferJionally and hat sufficient expertite to Perform

his or her role as a Board member, and

d) At least one member i, a financial expert, meaning that he or Jhe hat exPertise in financial

management and accountinS
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TTATEMENT -Cont'dt rt
The relevant appointing authority sha[ appoint Board members in rine with the provisions of
the LBDA Act. No 442 of 2Ol2 laws of Kenya, the State Corporation Act, Cap. 446 or any
other relevant law-

Every appointment ,hall be by name and by notice in the Kenya Gazette but shall cease if the Board
member:

a) Serves the appointint authority with a written notice of reJignation: or
b) Ir abrent. without the permiJJion of the chairperson, from three con,ecutive meetingJ; or
c) It convicted of an offence and sentenced to imprironment for a term exceeding Jix monthJ or

to a fine exceeding twenty thousand shillings: or
d) It incapacitated by prolonged physical or mental illness from performing his duties as a member

of the Board: or
e) Conducts himself in a manner deemed by the appointing authority to be inconsirtent with

membership of the Board.
Any removal of a Board member under (a) above, shall be through formal revocation.
The corporation secretary will enrure that a record of the appointment letter. gazette notice and
written acceptance by the Board member are kept in the personar fire ofthe Board member.

lndependence. Sepamtion of Roles and Responsibilltles
The primary responsibility ofthe Board ir to provide leadership and strategic direction to the Authority
to enhance value. The Board Directort are expected to exerciJe the highest degree of care. skill and
diligence in discharging their duties.

The roles and resPonJibilitieJ of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer remain diJtinct and reparate
which enrures a balance of power of authority and provides for checks and balances ruch that no
individual has unfettered power of decision making.

The Board provides oversight to the Authority'J top management and has unreJtricted accerJ to timely
and relevant information.

The Chairman provides overall leadership without limiting the principles of collective responsibility for
Board's decisions. The Chairman builds an effective Board and sets the Board agenda in consultation
with the Secretary/ Chief Executive Officer and enJure, effective communication to rtakeholderr.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible to the Board and taker the overall rerponJibility for the day
to day management of the Authority. The Chief Executive Officer recommendr the Jtrategy of the
Board and imPlementJ it and maket operational decisions. ln addition. ar Secretary to the Board. the
chief Executive officer ensures appropriate and timely information flows within the Board- its
committeeJ and management.
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COR PO RATE 6OVE RNANCE TTATEM ENT -Con t'd
The Corporation Secretary i5 in attendance of all Board meetingr to provide guidance to the Board on

their dutiet and reJPontibilitieJ: on matterJ of governance; and to provide efficient secretariat tervicer

including coordinating induction and training of new members, preparation for board meetinSs and

maintaining a record of the Jame, ditreminatinS action material for manaSement' and filing of
rtatutory return,

Prlndpal Board Activltles
The basic responsibilaty of the Board members ir to exercise their best iudgment and to act in a manner

that they reasonably believe to be in the best interest of the organization and itt JtakeholderJ. ln

diichargint that obligation, the members rhould be entitled to rely on the honesty and intetrity ofthe
organization'l Management, staffand itJ external profersional advirors and auditorr. ln furtherance of
its reJponsibilitier. the Board will:
i. Determine the ortanization'J miJsion, vision, purpose and core valuet:

ii. Review, evaluate and approve, on a regular batit, lont-term plans for the ortanizationi

iii. Review. evaluate and approve the organization'J budget and financial forecasts;

iv. Review, evaluate and approve major resource allocationJ and capital inveJtmentJ;

v. Ensure that the procurement process it coJt-effective and delivers value for money;

vi. Review and approve the operating and financial resultr of the organization;

vii. Ensure effective. accurate. timely and tranrparent disclosure of pertinent information on the

orSanization' J operations and performance:

viii. Ensure that effective processei and ryrtemr of risk management and internal controlt are in

place:

ix. Review, evaluate and approve the overall orSanizational structure, the aJtisnment of senior

manatement rejponiibilities and plans for senior management development and succession;

x. Review, evaluate and approve the remuneration Jtructure of the ortanization:

xi. Adopt. implement and monitor compliance with the orSanization'5 Code of Conduct and

Ethics:

xii. Review on a quarterly baji, the attainment of targets and objectivet Jet out in the aSreed

Srrformance meaJurement framework with the Govemment of Kenya;

xiii. Review periodically the organization'J rtrateSic obiectives and policies relating to Justainability,

social responsibility and invettment:

xiv. Protect the rights of Jhareholders and optimize shareholder valuet

xv. Enhance the organization'r public image and ensure engagement with stakeholders through

effective communication;
xvi. Monitor compliance with the Constitution, all applicable lawr, regulationt and standards;

xvii. Review. monitor and ensure that the organization is effectively and consittently delivering on

itJ mandate
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CORPORATE OOVERNANCE STATEM ENT _Cont,d
Board Membershlo and Attendance of Meefings
The Board holds regular meeting at least once every quarter and supplementary meetint are held aJ
and when neceJjary. ln case of non-attendance due to other commitmentJ, such information is
communicated to the Chairman prior to the date of the scheduled meeting.

Table l: Board attendance during the year

Board Commlttees and Rerponslblllfi es

The Board deletateJ certain functionl to well-structured committeer but without abdicating it, own
rejponJibilitier. Each committee is guided by the Committee CharterfermJ of Reference, which
outlineJ itt resPonJibilitieJ a, mandated by the Board and is reviewed on a yearly basis. The committeet
are appropriately conrtituted drawing membership from amongrt the Board members with
appropriate skills and experience.

NO R,EA4ARK5 ATTENDANCE

Full Board

107'h Full Eoard - 29'h March 2O23 t4/15

Board lnduction exerciJe - l2,h-l4rh April 2O23 t3/15

Board lnauguration- l9'h April 2O23 t5/15

Special Full Board - 2orn April 2023 t5/15

oard Tour of ProiectJ- 2d 4,h May 2023B t3/15

Special Full Board -15'h May 2023 t4/15

f nterviewr MDJ Recruitment- 26th May 2023 15/15

Full Board .27tn )une 2023loSth t5/16

Flnlnce .nd BudtA Commltte?2

F&B Committee - 25'h April 2023I lg'h 6/6

Pllnnlns. Strrteg.y & Dcv. Comm.3

nnin8. rtrategy & Dev. Committee - 24,h Aptil 202378'h Pla 9/10

Ardh Mlnagcm€nt Commlttee4

Audft Commiftee- 5th May 202339'h 5/5

5 Human Rercurce Committcc

Jpecial HR Committee- 4th April 2023 6/7

uitment of MD- l2'h -l4ri May 2023Recr 7/7
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CO R PO RATE COVERNANC E TTATEM ENT lont'd
The Chairman of the Board, the Management and external partieJ/advisorJ attend the committee

meetingJ only by invitation. The committees are expected to operate tranJparently, ensure full

diJclojure to the Board and conduct themselveJ within the rules and procedures 5et out by the Board.

The respective Chairman prerent, matters deliberated by the committeet to the Board during the next

board meeting. The Board has the following four (4) rtanding committees, which hold reSular meetint

four (4) timeJ a year and ,uPPlementary meetings as and when neceJrary.

1. Plannlng, Stntegy and hvelopment Commllte.

Table 2: Members Planning, Strategy &
Committee

1 Rebecca Maroa Chairperson

2 Willis Orowe Member

3 Hellen Makone Member

4 Luke Obongo Member

5 swadi kedoto Member

6 Francir Okedi Member

7 Julius Chacha Member

8 kaac [rogo Member

9 5ara Aliongo Member

10. Maurice Opondo Member

The principal obiective of the Committee is to make

Jtratetic directiont that will enable the Board to
effectively discharge the mandate of the Corporation

as provided under section 8 of the LBDA Act. No 442

of 2Ol2 as followr:
'1. Provide ajturance to the Board that the

Authority't Jtrategic Plan it implemented

efficiently by commisrioning appropriate

policie, and syitemJ.

2. Advise the Board on Jtrategic Projects,
programme, and Public-Private partnerthip

priorities, enJurinS that thete are aligned to
LBDA'r Jtrategic viJion and obiectiveJ

3

4

5

6

7

through properly vetted fearibility studies and due diligence-

Advise the Board on sound capital investment decitioni and directionr.

Advise the Board on prudent research and development initiativeJ in line with LBDA'J JtrateSic

vision and objectives,

Ensure LBDA's monitorint and evaluation syrtem iJ developed and engrained in sound policy

and is fit for the purpote.

commirJion analytical workj aJ necerrary on either the proiectt or ProsrammeJ to enable the

Committee to fulfil itr oversitht role without rtalling management proSreJJ and/or oPerationr.

Any other duties a, may be determined from time to time by the Board
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3' Provide assurance to the Board that the sound policies and syrtemJ have been put in place for
the control and management of aJrets that includes but not limited to: movable and immovable
property. tangibre and intangibre property, storeJ, equipment, rand. buirdings, animars,
inventory, Jtock, intellectual rithts verted in the Authority.

4. Advise the Board on prudent legal decisions and directionr.
5. Enrure LBDA's financiar appraisal procedures and practices are developed and engrained in

sound policy and are fit for the purpose.
5. Any other duties as may be determined from time to time by the Board.

3. Human Retource Commttte

2. Finance & Rudget Commttte

Tabte 3 F nanCE & IudIet comm Ittee

I Eng. Robert K. Limo Chairperson
Hellen Makone Member

3 Lavender O,iala Member
4. Ja(kson Swadi Ledogo Member
5 Francis Okaye Okedi Member
6 Ebel Ochieng Calo Member
7 Maria Cherono Member
8 Anne Chelagat Member

allocation priorities, enruring that theJe
through a properly vetted budgetary pro

COR PORATE C'OVERNANCE TTATEM ENT lontinued

The Finance & Budget Committee objective iJ to
develop financial policies. goals, and budgetr that
Jupport the mission and strategic goals of the
Authority, aJ well ar monitoring Authority'J internal
control and riJk manatement activitiej a, followJ;
. Provide ariurance to the Board that the

Authority'J financial: arretJ and legal are
managed prudently by commissioning
appropriate policieJ and JyjtemJ.

:. Advire the Board on strategic financial/resource
are aligned to LBDA's rtratetic viJion and objectiver
posal.

The HR Committee iJ eJtablirhed to arsiJt the Board
in fulfilling itr overritht rerponribilitier through the
implementation of round compenration and
Human Resource policies and practices. The HR
Committee's primary duties and responsibilities are
to:
l. Provide leadership in the prudence of

Human Resource management.
in matters relating to Human Resource. 6eneral
view to enabling the Corporation to effectively

2 Advice the Board on strategic directiont
Adminirtration and Govemance with a
discharge it5 mandate.

3. Provide asrurance to the Board that the Authority's human rerource, are managed prudently
by commissioning appropriate policiej and ,ystemJ.

4. Ensure LBDA's human resource appraisar procedures and practices are deveroped and
engrained in sound policy and are fit for the purpose.

5' Advise the Board on optimum human resource capitar base on LBDA's strategic viJion and
objectives.

6. Any other duties as may be determined from time to time by the Board

Table 4: HR Committee

I Mr. Lavender Oiala Chair rJon
2 Mrs. Teresa Bitutu Oroo Member
3 Mr. Luke Ouko Member
4 Mr. Ebel Ochien Calo Member
5 En Robert K Umo Member
6. Mr. Maurice ndo Member
7 MJ. Maria Cherono Member
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UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual R.eportJ and Finrncial 5t t€mentJ
For the year ended June 30. 2023.

4. Audit Committe

Table 5: Audit Committee

Mr. Willis Omondi Orowe Chai rton
2 Mrr. Terera Bitutu Oroo Member
3 Mr. Juliur Chacha Gabriel Member
4 Mr. Anne Chelagat Member

5 Mr. Rebecca Ghati Maroa Member

COR PORATE GOVERNANCE TTATEMENT -Continued

The objective of the Committee rhall be to arritt

the Board in discharging itr dutier relating to
Jafe8uarding of atsetJ, the operation of adequate

JyJtems, control ProcetseJ and the Preparation of
accurate financial reportinS and JtatementJ in

compliance with all applicable legal requirementt

and accounting itandardt. lt5 duties shall include:

)
3

Serve as an indep€ndent, competent and obiective Party to monitor the intetrity of the

Authority'J financial reporting procers and internal control JyttemJ relating to finance'

accountint. and operational and legal compliance.

Compensate, retain and overlee the work performed by the authority'5 external AuditorJ.

Arrirt the Board of Directorr in fulfilling itr rerponsibilitier by reviewing the financial rePortr

provided by the Authority to the Parliament lnveJtment Committee (PlC) and other

Jtakeholders.

Recommend. ertabliih and monitor procedureJ deJisned to improve the quality and reliability

of the authority's financial condition and resultr of oPerations.

Provide an avenue of communication among the external auditorJ. Jenior Manatement. and

the Board of Directort.
Any other duties as may be determined from time to time by the Board

Caoadtv BuildlnS for the Board

Regular trainint and development programmeJ are developed to equip the Board with necessary skills

for effective discharge of their mandate. Each year the Board prepareJ a training calendar where

specific training needJ are identified and scheduled. During the year. the Directort attended variout

capacity buildint programmes focusing on leadership, Sovernance, finance and other relevant arear.

upon appointment of a new Director. the Management tuider them throuSh a formal induction

proSramme explaininS the anatomy of the Authority, itJ oPerationr and they 8et the opPortunity to

meet the key officers. They are alio taken through corporate tovernanc€ training to aJ to understand

their roles and retpontibilities at DirectorJ

Board Effuctlveners and Evaluatlon

ln order to assess and improve the capacity, functionality and effectiveneJs of the Board and its

Committees, an annual evaluation ii undertaken in accordance with the widely accePted Principles of
corporate governance. The self-evaluation reviews the capacity, functionality and effectiveneJt of its
performance in the achievement of its goals and obiectives. lt aJtettet the Performance and

independence of the Board and itr CommitteeJ iointly and individual members of the Board, including

the Chief Executive Officer.

4

5

6
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LAKE RA'IN DEVEIOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Reportr and Flnsncial Statementt
For the yesr ended June 30, 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TTATEMENT -Continued

The Chief Executive Officer is assessed in her roles as the Chief Executive Officer and Secretary to the
Board. The Chairman's ability to add value, his performance againJt what is expected of his role and
function, is also assessed. The results of the evaluation form the basis on which action/work plans for
the preceding year are formulated, assists to identify the training needs and it alro form, the baris of
re-appointment of directors.

Dlrecton' Remuneration
During every Board meetinS, PreJent DirectorJ are entitled to a Jitting allowance. lunch allowance (in
lieu of lunch being provided). accommodation allowance and mileage reimbursement where
applicable within government tet limits for ttate corporations aJ outlined in (overnment circular
OP /CAB.9/21 /2N41 /43 of 23 /11 /2oo4.

The Chairman receiveJ a monthly honorarium. During the year, there were no Directorr' loans. DetailJ
of Directors emoluments during the year are shown in noter to the financiar ,tatements.

Ethlcal Standards

The Directort and employees of the Board have a fiduciary duty to act honeJtly and in the bert interert
of the Board. BuJinets trantactiont with all partieJ must be carried out at arm'i length and with
intetrity. The Board provides effective leadership based on ethical foundation and ensures all
deliberations. decisions and actionr are bared on the Boardi core values underpinning good
SOVernance.

All DirectorJ and employees are expected to avoid activities and financial interertJ that could
undermine their responsibilitie, to the Authority.

The Board applies a Conlllct of lntee t Policy. ADirector with an actual or potential conflict of interest
in relation to a matter before the Board is required to diiclose such interert and. excure himself or
herrelf from the Board for discuriion reratint to the matter in quertion. At the beginning of the
financial year, all directort signed a Declaration of lnterert Form declaring that they will disclose any
interett that conflictt or Postibly may conflict with the interests of the Board. At the commencement of
any business to be tranracted, all directors are required to declare their interert, if any
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UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annurl R€portr and Flntndal stltemantt
For the trcar cnded June 30. 2O23.

9. IVIANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY'IS

In the financial yeat 2022/23 the Authority received Kshs. I,l32.2Million from the National Treasury

which included; Kshs. 438.9Million fordevelopment expenditure and Kshs, 693.3Million for recurrent.

To rupplement its activitieJ LBDA war expected to raise f\shr. 75 Million through A in A.

The Authority implemented four dwelopment proiectJ during this Financial year and they included:

a) Droutht Mititation (Kshr. 30O Million)
b) The construction of Nyakoe Market (Kshs. 13.5 Million)
c) the Lichota Muhoroni and Alupe Solar lrriSation project (Ksht. 71.9 Million)
d) The construaion of Amariba Market (lzshs. 13.5 Million)

The Recurrent expenditure of lzshs. 593.3 Million mainly catered for Personnel Emoluments (PE) of
rtaff in the organization, lmplementation of ERP, payment of pending bill; and other operation and

maintenance cost incurred.

Rcvenw Analysb
During the year under review, The Authority 'J revenue can be summarized as below

Partlculan Amount ln KJh

Development and recurrent

Irants

Sale of Agricultural products

Rental income 7 4,820,t22

Finance income and Other income
3.671,141

Total 1,t46952511

1,056,240.000

't2.221.279

Expcrue Anafsls
Duri the r under review. The Autho ,ex ses can be summarized as below

LBDA INCOME ANALYSIS

Partlorlars Amount ln Ksh

General Expenses 4t6,O24.215

Employee emoluments 390,872,507

Board Expenses 20,618,822

Repairs 22,2t I,389

Contracted Services 48t,532,181

Finance Costs 56t.7 43

Total r,44/.307,671
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UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annurl Reportt and Fin.ndal Stat€ment,
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

Management Dlscutslon & Analysls Cont ,

Statu, Report on ontolng proiectt

l. Drllllng of Boreholes.
The integrated community water projects are impremented by Lake Balin Deveropment Authority.
TheJe proiectr are aimed at enabling community;r easy accerr to clean portable water for human
consumption and small-scale agriculture though the use of clean sourcer of energy, thi, i, to ensure

'uttainability 
of the proiectt. Thit project entail, the harnessing of ground water-resources using lolar

powered_technologies majorly for domeJtic ure acrorr the 72 ionstituencies (lB CountieJ) coveied by
the-Lake Basin development Authority. Each borehole i, aimed at providing water to more than
l0'o00rendentl. This ir done in phases, and currently LBDA ir implementing-the drillint ana elrifping
of 34 No borehole;.
Ptolsttan:

l. Drilling and equippint of borehole
ll. Constriction of 6M high level waterutorage tank
lll. Conrtruction of solar array, pump house and a$ociated accerrorie,
lV. Conrtruction of water reticulation Jystem
V. Conrtruction of 3 M high perimeter fence

to recure the key infrastructur€

lmplcment fio!, tt tut
The proiectr are spatially distributed in different
locations of the 72 conrtituencie, that are covered by
Lake Basin Development Authority. Currently there
are 34 community water project, that are beint
implemented. The proiectr are ongoing with eich at
different rtage, of completion.

2. Constnrtlon of Nyakoe lv{arket
Nyakoe Market Centre iJ located in Kirii County on the main Kisumu Clals Al highway that connectt
Kenya with ranzania. The centre ir located in an area that prerent, a fairly constlnt increase in
population due to itt proximity to the Eatt African Trade corridor that link Kenya to Tanzania. ThiJ

connectivity i, itrategic not only for the
development of Kirii County and other
rurrounding CountieJ tuch as Homabay. Migori.
Kisumu and Nyamira but also for national
trowth and development.

The general objective iJ the conrtruction of an
ultra-modem market to ,timulate trading
activitieJ in Nyakoe town thus lpurring
Jocio-economic trowth in the town.

lr-. .trx
1 Sa A hrz.--
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UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Reportr and Flnrndal StatementJ
For th€ year ended June 30. 2023,

Manageme Atcuttlon & Analytb Cont'
SNfic obiectlvet

L Stimulate trading activities at Nyakoe town
ll. Provide acceJt to water and tanitary facilitiej
lll. Control flooding in the market
lV. ConJerve the nearby wetland and river

The proiect is completed and handed over to the Kisii

County 6overnment.

F
1'/

r-)
3. Alupe, Llchota & Muhoronl 5ol!r lrdtltion Projectr.

The firJt phaie of the proiectr practically complete at an average at 98olo and handed over for use after

teJting and commitrionint except for Muhoroni Jite' which it at the

terting phare.

Ob/xtlvec The general objective aimt to utilize the Project a5 in

spurring adoption of modern farming technologiet that will
empower communitiet throuth transfer of solar powered irritation
technologier. The realization of this obiective wa, actualized thouth

the followint project componentJ.

a) Drilling and equiPpint of 2No boreholes,

b) Solar lnrtallation Works,

c) Erection of Steel tower and elevation of 8No. 24m3 uPVC

Water Tank.

d) lrrigation inttallation Work and Land preParation,

e) Conttruction of a Farm House and lnstallation of Chain- link Fencing Work

0 Extention of chain-link fence for Muhoroni and Lichota

d ConJtruction of Dairy unit ,tructuret

The authority commenced on the firrt phare ofthe proiect in late 2Ol9 at a pilot ttudy putting 60 acret

under irrigation in her 3 farms namely,

Alupe, Muhoroni and Lichota Butia,

Kisumu and MiSori CountieJ retPectively

3. ArvtARlBA IViARKET
Amariba Market was conceived through
the preridential directive to forter and improve the trade within the proposed location of the market.

The main objective being improved trade volumer besides good and effective handling of trade

commodities. The market war a twan conception with Nyakoe Market which was given a Priority and

is complete at the moment. The Amariba Market proiect ,iutt had iti designs ready and it ,et to be

implemented once finances are available.

r+.r

\
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UKE SA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Reports and Flnlndal jtat€ment,
For the year mded June 30. 2023.

Mtnagcme Atcuttlon & Analy s Cont '
compliance with rtatutory rEulr€mentt
LBDA has complied with itt establiJhins Act. lt has alJo complied with other legal requirementJ Juch a,
submission of llatutory deductionj to KRA and itJ internal policies and procedures.
There are no instances of non-compliance that would lead to financial loJr in the period under review.
the Authority complied with all ttatutory requirementr and har not received any ranctions so far for
non-compliance

Malor Rlrk Faclnt the Authorlty
The Authority considers the following as itr major riskj:

i. Regulatory & compliance rirk
Competition - exiJtence of competitorJ with their new ,trategies
Economic and business risk
Operational and credit risk - potential of financial loss
Availability and cost of capital
lnformation ryrtemr recurity

Rlrk mancqement. prlnclprl rlsk and uncertalntle,
The Board iJ ultimately accountable for the Authority's risk management process and Jyrtem of
internal control. ln terms of a mandate by the Board. the Audit and Risk Committee monitorr the rirk
manaSement process and ryrtems of internal control of the Authority.

Rlrk management - ,.
The ERM poliry is Jubiect to annual review, and any amendments are rubmitted to the Audit and Risk
committee for approval. The obiective of risk management in the Authority iJ to ertabri'h an
inteSrated and effective rirk manatement framework where important and emerging risk are
identified, quantified and managed

Mlterhl lrr€rn ln rtatutory End other financhl obllqation,
ln the period under review, the Authority complied with all statutory requirements and thus there are
no material arrearJ in rtatutory and other financial obligations.

lL

iii.
iv.

vi.

xxxllr



LAKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annusl ReportJ lnd Flnandal ttatementt
For the year ended June 30, 2023.

IO. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SU'TAINABILITY REPORTING

The Lake Basin Development Authority exiits to traniform lives. This iJ our purPosei the drivint force

behind everything we do. lt'r what tuides us to deliver our Jtrate8y, puttinS the cuttomer/Citizen firrt,

delivering relevant toodJ and services, and improving operational excellence. Below ir an outline of

the organization! policies and activitieJ that promote ,uJtainability.

Lake Basin Development Authority orSanizational ,uJtainability is centered on three pillarr:

o People and Community

o Finance and Economic Activity

. Environmental SuJtainability

l) People and Communlty

The Authorlty ai !n emplo)rer
lake Basin Development Authority is committed to being a good employer, and to contribute

poJitively to the local community through Jocial economic initiatives.

Human Resource Policy inrtrument, that tuide the hiring procert in LBDA are Organizational Structure

and Staffing Policy. Approved LBDA staff EJtabliJhment, Human Resource Policies and Procedures

Manual. Career Progressions Manual and the ComprehenJive Job DeJcription, Manual. The hiring

procerJ is undertaken on the bariJ of fair competition and merit while ensuring representation of
Kenya's diverse ethnic communities, equal opportunity to all gender. youth. persons with dirabilitiet

and minorities.

To ensure staff skills and competences are continually improved. LBDA has endeavoured to facilitate

Jtaff trainints and capacity building interventions ar outlined in the Training Needs Assessment Survey

report. The Authority has also developed Career Progression 6uidelines that tets standards for training

and advancement within the career rtructureJ on the barit of Jtaff acquitition of professional

qualificationl and requisite competenceJ. Performance appraisal for the Authority is conducted

biannually urint the 6oK 5taff Performance Appraisal sy(em (5PA5) tool which in tum informs

employee rewards and tanctions as apProPriate. Rewards and JanctionJ are recommended by

management aJ per the provisions of Rewards and SanctionJ framework issued by Public Service

Commission from time to time.

LBDA is committed to making a conJciouJ effort in conrervint and improving safe and healthy working

conditions for all our intemal and external cuJtomerJ in compliance with oSHA 2007. Our policy

which is outlined in the Human Resource Policies and Procedurer Manual. provides guidelines for the

prevention and protection of officers aSainit accidentJ and occupational hazards ariJing at the

workplace.
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ENVIRONMENTAT AND SUtfANARtLtTy REqORT\Ni Contd
2) Flnance and Economlc actlvlty
The Authority recognizes the way in which it conduct, itJ activitieJ financially has a bearing on thore
with an interett in itt work. The Authority financial regulationr follow the laid down Accounting
5tandards.

3) Envlrcnmentalsurtatnlblllty

LBDA recognizes environmental rurtainability a,
the 8reatejt challenge of the 2ln century and
commitJ to enrurint that all of it, maior Jtrategie,
and operation, conlider their environmental and
ecolo$cal arpects and impactr. ln thir rejpect
Authority i, partnering with variour County
govemmentr and other rtakeholders in
conrervation

LBDA'r main environmental impactj are the
utilisation of resourcer, predominantly energy,
through electricity conrumption and water- The

Authority is fully aware of the need to ure reJourcer responribly and ii committed to minimisint itt
environmental impactJ to the extent porrible.

The Authority recognitet the rirk that
retulatory changel. environmental
conrtraintJ and climate chante preJent to it,
operationr. Potential impactl include riring
cortr, reduced accerJ to facilities,
interruptionJ in rervice. and incidentt of
extreme weather event, a, a rerult of
climate. However, the Authority alro
believes that urint rerourcer rerponribly can
be a source of itratetic advantage for the
Authority, allowing it to manate and
contain itJ operating coJt, and to ensure
ongoing accets to water and energy rupplies

v ! I

3j -l

The Authority taket itJ PolicieJ to reduce itt impact on the environment very reriourly and itj facilitier
and rervicer divirion is conrtantly inveitigating new opportunitie, to reduce it, impact on the
environment.

4I

I

I

ilt
.1 ,l

I
t'-

xxxv



UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Reportj tnd FinanciEl Statement,
For the year ended June 30. 2023.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SU'TAINABIUTY REPRTING CONt,d

l)Market place practlcet-

a) Responslble competition pmctice.

Competition is healthy for buJinerJeJ and ar government orSanization it encouratet innovation to

achieve her mandate. Authority har responsible competition practice by following theJe key principles,

by Knowing our cuJtomerJ and stake holders, competitors. the difference between the authority and

Other agencies or organizations. our product and messages. tarSet market. PartnerJhiPJ and

opportunitiei and innovation in external environment we operate in.

Authority ensures responsible competition practiceJ by en5urint tranJParency in all areas of supply

chain to promote anti-corruption practicer and rerponrible political involvement through Public

participation in manaSement of public resources and choice of Proiectt and programmes. To enhance

fair competition the authority doer not price her products and services lower than what the market is

offering to disadvantage competitort.

b) Responllble Supply chaln and ,uPpller relatlont
Authority hal maintained responsible supply chain and supplier relationt through advertiJing for

annual prequalified suppliers. engate them on available iob opportunities and support different

suppliers to deliver contracted asrisnmentJ and for those dealing in authority Products and tervices

quality and customer service is maintained at all times and payment for services rendered is done al per

the contract.
c) Responslble marketlng and sdvertlsement

Responsible marketing and advertirement is adhered to by enJuring product or tervice advertiJement

mesrageJ doeJ not infringe into competitorJ' productJ in order maintain ethical marketinS practicet.

d) Produa rta,vardshlp
On Product stewardship, Authority has always pursued quality and differentiation in the market place

by enruring we continue to innovate our products and terviceJ to achieve the authority mandate'

while ensuring customer ratiJfaction and delight ir achieved to safeguard consumer riShtJ and intererts

l0 Corpomte Soclal R€rponrlbllity / Communlty EnSatement,

Restoratlon of forcst cover canoDv bv 15 llion trees as Der the Pnet tial directlve

LBDA recognizes its role and responJibilitieJ towardJ communitiet and environmentr in which it

operater. AJ part of iti commitment to Corporate Social ReJponribility (CSR). we implemented Jeveral

initiative, and projects to contribute to the Justainable development of the Lake Basin region.

The Authority participated in a tree PlantinS campaign to mitiSate deforeJtation and promote

environmental conJervation. Thousands of seedlings were planted in collaboration with local

communities. schools, environmental and non-Sovernmental organizationt contrabuting to

reforejtation and afforeJtation effortJ and raising awareness about climate chanSe and the siSnificance

of preserving the region's natural reJources.

Thir report highlights key CSR activities undertaken by LBDA durinS the rePortin8 period:
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On l7h May 2O23. the Authority Participated in a tree planting exercire in Butula ConJtituency in Busia
county. A total of 2000 arrorted tree reedrings were donated and pranted in the folowint
inrtitutionJt

i)

ii)
iii)

Bujumba Chief r Camp
Burinda Primary 5chool
Butula Technical & Vocational Training College

On 23d May 2023, the Authority participated in a tree
planting exerciJe organized by the Minirtry of lnterior and
National Adminirtration through the office of the county
Commissioner Kisumu. A total of lgOO assorted tree
reedlings were donated for planting. The Kirumu County
exercise covered 5 schook, namely:

i) Mbega Primary School
ii) Rabuor Primary School
iii) Ranjira Primary School
iv) Migingo Primary School
v) Nyakana Primary School (Nyando

5ub

:
t

.'..- j 
--:. 1

-County)

On 2d June 2023, LBDA was invited to participate in
reJtoration of Kakamega forelt in Shinyalu Sub-County. A
total of 5OO aiiorted tree teedlings were donated to
Kakameta ForeJt Heritage Foundation for planting. This
exercire war conducted in collaboration with The Minijtry
of Health. Kakamega County leadership. Kenya ForeJtry
Service (KFS), N6O'r and other tovernment paraJtatals
under the leaderrhip of Ci for Health Mrr. Suran
Nakhumincha. CJ for Labor Mru. Flora Bore. Women Rep
for Kakamega County. Elsie Muhanda

On 3d June 2023,
LBDA donated 500

aisorted tree seedlings at the requert of Agricultural Society of
Kenya (ASK) Kisumu branch and participated in a tree plantint
exercise in coniunction with Young Farmer Astociation (yFA)
and 4K club.

OUTPUT

l. Enhance environmental conrervation through
donation of tree seedlings

2. Enhance community relationship and collaborations

, t{

:\
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3. Creating mars awarenejs on the imPortance of Sreenins and the environment

'UMIVIARY 
OF csR ACTIVITIES

Donatlon of Trce Seedllngr

LBDA conduaed a 2.00O tree seedlings Plantint exercile in

Busia County. The exercise done in Burinda Primary School'

Chiefs Camp and Butula Technical and Vocational College.

On 23d May 2023, LBDA in coniunction with other

tovemmentr and private agencies conducted a l,8OO

tree reedlints. The exercise was done in Mbega

Primary,Midnto Primary and Nyakakana Primary.

30.0002,OOOTree reedllngtI t7 /o5/2O23 Donrtlon of tre€ teedlln8r ln
Burl. County

27.@Oturorted tree
reedling,

1.800Donation of tr€e teedlinSt ln
coniun<tion wlth office o,
County Commlrtloner Xitumu

2 23/Os/2O21

7.500Arrortcd tree
rcedlingr

500Donation of tree reedllnSt .t
f\akenreSr forett ln colbboratlon
wlth Mlnirtry of Herlth
K.karn€8a, f.!ny. Forett Servlce
(KFJ) NGOr & Parartltdt

3 02/06/2023

9,000600furort€d tree
reedlingr

03to6/2023 Donltion of tree teedlinSt ln
K!k!rn€8a foren

4

4,9@ 73,fi|-TOrAt
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UKE BA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Annual Reports and Flnrndll Stst mcntt
For the yerr ended June 30,2023.

II. REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directort tubmit their rePort together with the audited financial rtatement, for the year ended
June 3o' 2023. which show the Jtate of Lake Barin Development Authority'l affairs.

l) Prlrdpcl aatvltles
The principal activitier of the Authority are ertablished under cap 442 Lawr of lzrenya are: -(a) lnte$atedbasin-baseddevelopmentplanning;
(b) lntetrated basin-based development project, and progrummer:
(c) Resource studies and information sharing for barin wide planning and development(d) Public invertment and establishment of basin rerource management standards and norms:(e) Utilization of intemational water: and
(0 lntervention, of rtrategic national govemment interert

ll) Rcsults

The rerults of the Authority for the year ended June 30, 2O23. are ,et out on page I

ll0 Dlrcctort
The memben of the Board of Directo' who served durint the year are lhown on pate vii to xii.
During the year, l8 dlrector retired and l5 were appointed.

lv) Surplur rernlsslon
ln accordance with Regulation 219 (2) of the public Financial Management (National 6ovemment)
Regulationl. retulatory entitiet thall remit into Conrolidated Fund, ninety per centum of its turplus
fundl reported in the audited financial statementr after the end of each financial year. The Lake Barin
Development Authority did not mske any surplus during the year (Fy 2022-2023) and hence no
remittance to the Conrolidated Fund.

v) Audltort
The Auditor General is responslble for the Jtatutory audit of the Lake Rasin Dcvelopment Authorityln
accordance with Article 229 0f the connitution of Kenya and the public Audit Act 2015

By Order of the Board

L
Wyclltre

Secretary to the Board
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Annual Rcportl and Flnrndll Stltcm.ntt
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12. STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR' RESPONSIBILMB
Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 require the Directors to prepare financial

rtatements in resp€ct of that Lake Basin Development Authority, which give a true and fair view of the

,tate of affairu of the Authority at the end of the financial year/Wriod and the oPeratint relults of the

Authority for that year/period. The DirectorJ are ako required to enJure that the Authority keePt

proper accounting recordr, which dircloie with reasonable accuracy the financial potition of the

Authority. The Directors are also relponsible for safeguardinS the arrett of the Authority'

The Directors are relponsible for the preparation and pretentation of the Authority's financial

,tatementJ, which give a true and fair view of the ,tate ofaffairs of the Authority for and at at the end of
the financial year ended on June 30, 2023. Thit responsibility includes:

a) Maintalnint adequate financial management arrangementJ and enrurint that thete continue to
be effective throughoul the reportinS period;

b) Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable a<curacy at any time

the financial porition of the entity;
c) DeJitnint, implementint and maintaining internal controk relevant to the preparation and fair

pretentation of the financial Jtatementt, and enrurint that they are free from material

mirJtatementr, whether due to error or fraud;

d) Safeguarding the arJet, of th€ Authorityi
e) Selecting and applying appropriate accountint policies: and

f) Making accounting ertimate, that are reatonable in the circumstances.

The Directorr accept reJponJibility for the Authority's financial ttatementt, which have been prepared

utint appropriate accountint policieJ ,upported by reasonable and prudent iudpmentr and ertimatet'

in @nformity with lntemataonal Public Sector Accountint StandardJ (IPSA5), and in the manner required

by the PFM Act, 2012.
The Directo[ are of the opinion that the Authorivs financial statementJ Sive a true and fair visrv of the

nate of Authorivr tranractionr during the financial year ended June 3O, 2O23, and of th€ Authority't
financial position at at that date.
The Directorr further confirmr the completeness of the accounting recordt maintained for the Authority,

which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Authority't financial Jtatements al well at the

adequacy of the syrtemJ of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directorr to indicate that the Authority will not remain a toint
con<€m for at leart the next twelve month, from the date ofthit ttatement.

Appl! ,!l of th€ fnrndll ru€rn€ntr

The Authority'J financial Jtatement, were approved by the Board on 27'h September 2023 and signed on

its behalf by:

-fl*'fi.,r
Mr. James Dlanga
Chalrman of th€ Board

@*-Ctz
CPAVrlclltre Odrlaga
Accountlng Off,cer

xl
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
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HEADqUARTERS
Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box foo84-ooloo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON LAKE BASIN DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORIfi FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report, which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,

efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance ManagementAct,2Ol2 and the PublicAuditAcl,20lS. Thethree parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lake Basin Development
Authority set out on pages 1 to 43, which comprise of the statement of financial position

as at 30 June, 2023 and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in

net assets, statement of cash flows and the statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the

Report of ahe Auditor-Generql on Lake Basin Development Authori,y lor the year ended 30 June, 2023



constitution of Kenya and section 35 of the public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for eualified
opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
re^spects,- 

-the financial position of the Lake Basin Development Authority as at
30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flowsfor the year then ended,
in accordance with lnternational Public sector Accounting standards and comply with the
Public Finance Management Act,2012 and the Lake Basin Development Auihority Act,
2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

L Failure to Accrue Seruice Charges and Collect Revenue

The statement of financiat performance and as disclosed in Note 11 to the financial
statements reflects general expenses of Kshs.416,024,215 which includes management
fees of Kshs.1,349,037. lt was indicated that management fee was derived trom 4.2yo
charge on total collection of lease revenue which was Kshs.32,'119,932 in the year.
However, supporting schedules provided for audit indicated that revenue colleciable
from the Lake Basin Development Authority (LBDA) Mall during the year amounted to
Kshs.53,872,679 as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial siatements and service
charges amounting to Kshs.6,977,523, all totalling Kshs.60,8S0,202. However, the estate
agent corrected an amount of Kshs.32,119,932 leaving an amount of Kshs.29,730,26g
outstanding. ln addition, the amount of Kshs.6,977,s23 relating to service charges has
not been accrued in these financial statements.

ln the circumstanees, the completeness and accuracy of the reported revenue from rent
of Kshs.53,872,679 and the accompanying management fees of Kshs.1,349,037 could
not be cpnfirmed.

2. Long outstanding lmprest and other Receivables from Exchange Transactions
The statement of financial position reflects amounts of Kshs.S,443,g54 and
Kshs.77,726,730 being receivables from non-exchange transactions and receivables
from exchange transactions respectively, as disclosed in Note 21a and 21b to the
financial statements respectively. Review of records provided revealed that a total of
Kshs.'t ,062,298 related to current staff debtors in respect of unsurrendered imprest
issued to staff. The entity did not provide evidence to show efforts made to recover the
unsurrendered imprest or details of the current status of the imprest as at the time of the
audit.

Further, an amount of Kshs.4,381,554 related to debtors in respect of former staff relating
to overdue imprest and credit sales. However, Management did not provide any credit
sale documents or records to support how the debts were arrived at or measures bn how
Management intended to deal with the outstanding amounts.

ln addition, included in the receivables from exchange schedule is an amount
of Kshs.534,080 being provision for bad debts. There was however no supporting
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schedule showing how the provisions were arrived at or a policy for the provision provided
to support the amount.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of receivables from non-exchange
transactions and reccivables from exchanges transactions balances of Kshs.5,443,854
and Kshs.77,726,730 respectively could not be confirmed.

3. Unsupported Additions to Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements
reflects property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.4,956,656,245. lncluded in the
amount are additions made during the year amounting to Kshs.88,600,303. However,
included under work-in-progress additions amount of Kshs.81 ,228,021 are two balances
totalling to Kshs.68,144,'186, made up of ERP software and mill plant of Kshs.33,643,943
and Kshs.34,500,243 respectively, which were not supported by acquisition invoices and
payment vouchers. Further, documentation, relating to additions to plant and equipment
balance of Kshs.3,491,706, were not provided in support of the acquisition.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, validity and completeness of property, plant and
equipment balance of Kshs.4,956,656,245 could not be confirmed.

4. Long Outstanding Trade Payables

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 26b to the financial
statements, reflects a balance of Kshs.3,201,082,934 relating to non-current trade and
other payables. lncluded in the balance is an amount of Kshs.2,500,000,000 indicated to
be owing to Cooperative Bank and has been outstanding for the last seven (7) years
without any repayments. Further, included in the long outstanding trade payables are
amounts totalling Kshs.68,236,606 that has been outstanding for between ten (10) and
thirty-three (33) years. No reason was provided for this state of affairs. This is contrary to
Regulation 150(1) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Regulations, 2020 which
requires that subject to availability of funds and after proper certification of goods, works
or service, prompt payments are made within 60 days from date of receipt of invoice.

ln the circumstances, the Company is exposed to fines and penalties as a result of delay
in payment of amounts due.

5. Failure to Comply with Loan Agreement Terms

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 28 to the financial statements
reflects borrowings from Government balance of Kshs.2,000,000,000. The balance
represents a loan from the Government of Kenya, pursuant to a loan agreement dated
29 June, 2017. The Government of Kenya and the Lake Basin Development Authority
entered into a loan agreement for Kshs.1.S billion for the mall project. An additional
amount of Kshs.0.5 billion was granted on 30 November,2017 raising the loan amount
to Kshs.2.O billion. This was a bailout to the Authority to facilitate it to settle outstanding
debts in regard to Lake Basin Mall Complex project in Kisumu.

According to the loan agreement, the Authority ought to have paid the first loan instalment
of Kshs.58,823,529 on 30 September , 2021, lhe second instalment of the same amount
on 31 March, 2022, lhe third instalment on 30 September, 2022 and the fourth
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instalment on 3'l March, 2023 of the same amount. This was not repaid, and hence the
Authority is in arrears of Kshs.235,294,1 '16 in the repayment of the principal amount of
Kshs.2,000,000,000 owed to the GoK as at the end of the year. The Authority was also
to repay interest on the principal outstanding amount at a rate of 5% per annum on
reducing balance. Further, according to the loan agreement, interest shall accrue from
the respective dates of disbursement of the loan proceeds and shall be computed on the
basis of a 360-days year of twelve 30-days months and interest accruing over the first
year of the grace period will be capitalized on the first principal repayment date.
Thereafter, interest shall be payable semi-annually on the 31st day of March and 30th day
of September each year.

However, review of the financial records indicated that the Authority had not repaid any
interest on the loan hence resulting in an accumulated total of Kshs.581,250,000.00 out
of which Kshs.100,000,000 related to the year under review. Further, although the
Authority continues to charge the interest expense in its statement of financial
performance there is no corresponding accrual of the interest payable in the statement of
financial position.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the terms of the loan agreement.
Additionally, the amount borrowed from Government is understated.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Lake Basin Development Authority
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the previous year, several matters were raised under report on the financial statements
and report on laMulness and effectiveness in use of public resources. Review of the
status of the same at the time of audit revealed that very few of those matters have been
resolved. No reason has been provided for the failure to address the matters.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
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else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. lncomplete Water Project Charged under Contracted Services

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial
statements reflects an amount of Kshs.481,532,181 relating to contracted services.
Examination of records provided for audit revealed that Management contracted a limited
liability company for the drilling, equipping boreholes and construction of water supply
infrastructure in the Lake Victoria Basin Region in June, 2022 al a contract sum of
Kshs.66,479,810.74. The contract period was 16 weeks with expected completion date
of 28 October,2022.

The contractor had been paid a total of Kshs.34,366,547 as at the time of audit. However,
verification of project sites conducted in January, 2024 rcvealed that one project under
the Lot 1, Kitere Technical Training lnstitute Community Water Project was incomplete
and has stalled. Management attributed the failure to complete the project to myriad of
hurdles including complaints from the locals that they were not involved in the initial
planning of the projects and needed to be considered in the distribution of water.

ln the circumstances, Managementwas in breach of the law and the Public may not derive
value for money from the incomplete and stalled project.

2. Unutilized Assets

The Ministry of Environment and Forestry through Lake Victoria Environmental
Management Project Phase ll donated a water hyacinth harvester worth Kshs.80,776,044
and two (2) tipper trucks worth Kshs.18,717,400 to Lake Basin Development Authority
vide transfer certificate dated 22 January, 2021 . lt was noted that to date the harvester
and trucks are not in use and are depreciating with time as there are no budgetary
allocations made. Further, the water hyacinth harvester has not been insured of any
eventuality given the high value of the asset.

ln the circumstances, value for money was not achieved from the unutilized assets.

3. Non4ompliance with the Law on Ethnic Composition

The statement of financial performance and Note 12 to the financial statements reflects
expenditure on employee costs of Kshs.390,872,507. Review of the staff compliment
revealed that the Authority had two hundred and sixty-seven (267) employees during, out
of which one hundred and forty-nine (149) or approximately fifty-six percent (56%) were
from the dominant community. Further, the Authority recruited 22 new staff in the year
under review, out of which 11, representing 50% of the recruitment, were from the same
ethnic group. This was contrary to Section 7(1) and (2) of the National Cohesion and
lntegration Act, 2008 which states that, all public offices shall seek to represent the
diversity of the people of Kenya in the employment of staff and that no public institution
shall have more than one-third of its staff establishment from the same ethnic community.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

Report of the Auditor-General on Lake Basin Development Authority for the year ended 30 June, 2023

5



4. Failure to Record Details of Revenue Receipts

The statement of financial performance reflects a balance ol Kshs.12,221,279 being sale
of agricultural products as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. However,
review of records provided revealed that details on the nature and source of revenue
were not disclosed in the official receipts and the cashbook. This was contrary to
Section 1 04 (2) of the Public Finance Management Act, 201 2 which states that all receipts
and payments vouchers shall contain adequate narration of the particulars of the services,
goods or works procured and being paid for.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governance were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Authority's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Authority or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.
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ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resour@s are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Authority's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of lhese financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the actlvities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error orfraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may b6come
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inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

r ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Authority to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

22March,2024
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UKE RA'IN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
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14. STATEMENTOT FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The noter ret out on pages 7 to 44 form an inteSral Part of these Financial StatementJ.

The Financial Statementr set out on page, i to 44 were signed on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

@,*dtZ -Adffii
Mr. Jamer DianEa

chairman of thd Borrd
CPA Wycliffe Ochiaga

Accountlng Officer

Date: 29/09/2023
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15. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAT POSITION A5 AT 30 JUNE 2023

The Financial Statementr ret out on pateJ i to 44 were ,igned on behalf of the Board of Directo. by:

Wlcliffe Ochiaga
Accountlng Officer

Date: 29/09/2023

=-> 
-

---va\fi r
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Head of Flnance
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Date: 29/09/2023

Chairman of the Board
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UKE aA'N OA/ELOPMaNT AUTHORITY
Annual Rcport and Flnrndll Stllttncrt
For thr yrer odrd Jlrte 3O.201!.

16. 
'TATEMEI{T 

OF CHANGE, IN NET ASSETS FOR, THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

ffi1v

754.620.659 2to,149.s27-272.375.443 474.044.198401.948.509At JuIv 1. 2021
70.m0.0m 55,488,887-l4J1l.l r30Total comrehensive irorne

0-$n93s'1rcn9j57Transferrcd dereciatim
-t8,414,241-18-414241Prbr vear Adirstrcnt

A 247.224.t73A477.773.933 d 813.841.303,101 48 509 ll-290.789.681At June 30. 2022
0ttI

247 173477.773.955 I 03I401 48 509 -29 789At JuIv 1. 2022
-283.181,035-2915348m 8353.E25Total cwehersive iromc

0Transferrcd &recbtim
0Prbr year AdilstuErf

822.195.128 35.956.E62-290.789.684 -969.310.815401.94t.509At JUr3 30. 2023

3



a

UKE aA'IN DEVELOPMENT AI.ITHORITY
Annual Rcports and Flmndll ttltcmcntt
For tfie ycar cndcd June 30.2023.

17. STATEMENT OF CASH FIOW' FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Crb lon fru rd tLt

s and subsidisCrvcmriDnt 6 l,0562,r0.0m n0,46.s,302
Sab ofA ulsl ltoduqts 7 tu2t2'te 18.4%22s
Financc inconr 9 1,827,488 t,7 ,691
Otlro inconr. l0 t,843,653 I,153,105
Reutal inconr 8 74.8m,|U 63,8/.9,4n
Tdt l,r{6952541 tss,762,t01

cc cost3 t2 390,87\fi1 29,,@s2$
R.tluncratbtr of diEctors l3 20,61&822 18,488,040

End Erilt€DrDcc l5 222i,3Ee 24,t@.J2t
Coltractcd 3crvbca l6 481J32,lEt 159JO3,791
Gencral cs ll 416924,215 2t0,l43.l0l
I'inaoce Oost t7 1,743 9T7,454
Toad P.yrDa. l13r120157 7tt946J43
Irht cuh 0ou flom iidn rdr.lder o8436EJl6) 73St6Asg
Cash flowr fromiaves acttvrtrs
Purchas e ofpropcrty, plort, cqubrEnt ald

2l (8t,600,3o4) (81,72t, I 03)

Docrcas e/Increasc in In 22 4,485,526 740,148
Decrcase, Incrtase in ou[E Eccivables 2t (4254,729') Q;147,lr7)
DocEa s e/Increage iD bleg 26 y9,%,w 49,t63,425

c.rh 0o!rr ucd ln hE,aha -tM,trr 26t537/0' (345715471
Crrh tlon tlm rddtl.r
Lscruse in fund &353.826 85J04,153
I{ct cuh iorr urcd h rdrldcr tJ53r26 rs504J63
Nct lncE.rc/(&crc.r€) ln c.rh ld cech

8S.022913 t24,748975

Cash ald cash cquivslente at I Jt Ly 20 t9\015,742 67,326,70
Crf, rnd crrh crphlcnb d 30 Jue 20 277 pgt$Ss 192$75J42
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UKE 8A5IN DlWLututtNTAUtrlOkr r
Annual Rrgortr ard Rmndll stlt rncrtt

a

For thc year cndcd Julc 3O 2olB.

18. 
'TATE,\,IENT 

OF COMPARTSON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL A,VTOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

na*rrx
Govcmm.nt grsn! 8nd lublili.s

314910,@oll49tqmo 3149ro.m 1@@16Rrcuftnt
156,130,0m r56,430,m lm(I,%156,410,000hnding B b

96mqoo lm@1696.m.m 96,0([,00Seky ArrcsB
50,000,00 5qmqoo 1@@1650.m.0mERP

43890203 43&900,m \@3 1@@163l8J&,0m tD.60e093DcvcbpGrt
2,0931r0102,091 r,056142,093 rps6110,mo l(Il(I,x93sr{0p00Toad Grrd

to,48r927L103N rzDtn9 53&l%?2703.ffissk of A8ri:ultur8l Mucts
{6'G9,E53 (668,630) 1r50896,10.051r23 ,{0,051.n3Rlntal Incollr

1,8r,,188 9,064912lo,Egq/m 10,89,1fi) 16 7816Financc IncoEC

1,8,$,653 5O9Jl82353,171 7&3596ohcl IncoEa ?-353.t7t

?5100.000 6t9r2272 ra.017,72t 8L 561676.000ImTdlA-iIr-A
rr,0l9r2lr 201602,093 r,r32rt2,r,r3 t,ttt227272 *,lffiIOTALINCOME r,cl r,6{0,000

D(PEISTS
4t,4t5952 @.27v"293.696,m 93.G4,m 1E6,730,0m vs24,wEEpbycc co!t!
r7,449,68r56.,130.m 13E 960962 8A&596kndinc Bilb 156,410,m

3.561.17r 85 27t624,1E0.000 20,618,822Rrmundrtion of Dilctors 24,1Eo,m

27,(x)5.m 4883,61I 8199627.095.m 22lLWRrpaiE end maintasnc.
(55.86333t120.095,093 177.4%a25n,m 27,56&093 375.,9*,44Contrectcd 3crvirs
(r03313s3) 1(r,2()'6166,712,m |n,043253Gcncrgl cpcnsas 166,?llm

l,(m,m 438257 561796r.m,m 55tr743Firsncc Coat

14486EE950,m,000 50,000,000 35,513,111 7LW"CEpitsl Egcndiill!
t20fi2193 rJr22az{9, rJr5J31J55 l6,rr03lt s.5896t,01r,640,000TdlcEdtur.

0 0 2p905r8 Ope0,5r7)Srr.dlt. fo.lt Frlod

E
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L4KE BASIN DEVELOPMENT ATJTHONTY
Annusl Rcports rDd Finrtrcirl Strt.mcnt
For thc yccr crd.d Juoc 30,2023.
Eudtet notes.

l. lale of Agnlcultunl goodr
The reduction in revenue it attributed to temporary stoppage of milling operations due inJtallation
of a new milling machine.

2. Rentrl lncome
From the budget. Kshs. 28.730,268.68 has been deducted from the actual rental income amount
being accrued mall income.

3. Flnance lncome
The marginal variance is attributed to a reduction in the amounts invested in calland
account, held by the Authority.

fixed deposit

4. Emplope Cons
From the budget' Kshr. 45,628,459.08 has been deducted from the actual emproyee cortr amount
being accrued salaries arrears.

5. Contracted teMcej
From the budget. khs.99,979,795.75 and lzshs. 5,593.95g.1o have been deducted from the actual
contracted servicer amount being accrued borehole coJt, and accrued ,ecurity exp€nJe,
rerpectively.

6. General Expenses

From the budget, lGhs. l0o,0oo,ooo has been deducted from the general expenses amount being
accrued GOK loan intereit

7. Capthl Expendttuic
From the budget, l(hs. 11,214,666.49 has been deducted from the capital expenditure amount
being accrued ERP.

6



L4 K E BAS 1 N D EI'ELO P M ENT A L'THO RIT)
Atlnual Rcports srd FiDrncisl Ststcments
For ahc y.rr cndcd Jutrc 30,2023.

19. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l. General lnformatlon
Lake Basin Development Authority ir establirhed by and derives itt authority and accountability

trom (Cap 442) Act. The Lake Basin Development Authority is wholly owned by the 6ovemment

of lGnya and is domiciled in Kenya. The Lake Basin Development Authority', PrinciPal activity is to
provide an avenue for a quicker, more meaningful and co-coordinated development in the Kenyan

portion of the Lake victoria barin.

2. Statement of Compllance and Baslr of Prtparatlon

The financial statementJ have been prepared on a historical cost basi, except for the meaturement

at re-valued amount, of certain items of proPerty, plant and equiPment. marketable securities and

financial inrtruments at fair value, impaired arsets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their prerent value. The preparation of financial statements in

conformity with lnternational Public Sector AccountinS Standardt (IPSAS) allows the use of
ertimates and assumptionJ. lt alJo require, manaSement to exercise judgement in the procerl of
applying the Authority accountinS policier. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or

complexity, or where arrumptionr and ertimatet are significant to the financial Jtatementt, are

disclosed in Note 5 of thete financial statements.

The financial ,tatementr have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is the

functional and reportinS curency of the Authority.

The financial rtatementr have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act. the State

Corporationr Act, and lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (lPSAS). The accountint

policies adopted have been contistently aPPlied to all the years Pretented.

3. Adoptlon of Ner,v and R.evlled Standardj

New and amended slarulards ond interpretolions in issue effective in the year ended 30

.lune 2023.

7

Applicable: ln January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the

financial reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will

present relevant and useful information to users of financial

statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of the authority's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4t provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model

for financial assets that considers the characteristics of

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

41:

I
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I;I KE BASI N DEI,EL)P M ENT A I]T HoRITf
AtrDurl Rcports rDd FiDrtrcirl Stltcmctrts
For ahc r cDdcd JUDG 30,2023.

ows and the objcctive for which the

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all financial instruments

subject to impairment testing; and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a strong link bctween an

Entity's risk management strategies and the accounting

trreatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

the asset's cash fl

asset is held;

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I.

Financial

lnstruments

a) Amcndments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to

the components of borrowing costs which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples

on hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guaranteed contracts which werc

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on

classifoing financial instruments on initial adoption of
accrual basis IPSAS which wer€ inadvcrtentlv omitted

when IPSAS 4l was issued.

Appliceblc: lst January 2023:

Other

improvcmcnts to

IPSAS

o 1P&4S 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the

General Government Sector. Amendments to rcfer to the latest

System of Narional Accounts (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39: Employee Benefits. Now deletes the term composite

social security benefits as it is no longer defined in IpSAS.

Applicablc Ia lanuary 2023

8
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U K E BASI N I) EI' ELO P M E,\T A T,'T H O RIT)'
ADnurl Rcports rtrd Finrncirl Strtcmcnts
For tbc r cndcd Jutrc 30, 2023.

New ond amended slandards and inlerPretotions in issue bul nol yel effective in lhe

year ended 30 June 2023.

Earty adoptlon of tt n&rdt
The Lake Basin Development Authority did not early - adopt any new or amended

standards in year 2022/2023.

9

IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and

Measurement. Standard no longer included in the 2023

IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which

is applicable from ln January 2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicable In Januory 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those ransactions. This information gives a basis for users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows ofthe authority.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and pr€sent

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable Ia January 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured

at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the

depreciation of such assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of

discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statement of

financial performance.



LA K E BA SI N DE'' ELO P ME NT A U|'H O RITY
A1lourl Rcports rnd Fitrrocirl Stracmctts

a

For tbc ycrr cndcd Juoc 30, 2023.

4.5ummary of Slgnlf,clnt Accountlng pollclet
a) Revenue r€cognltlon
i) Rerrenue from non-exchange transactlons

Fees. taxer and llnes
The Authority recognize, revenuer from fees and fines when the event occur and the asset
recoSnition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that
would give rise to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of
revenue. other non-exchange revenue, are recognized when it is probable that the future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the asset will flow to the entity and
the fair value of the aJret can be measured reliably.

Tranifen from other govemment entlflg

Revenues from non-exchante tranractionr with other tovemment entitier are measured
at fair value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (carh, goods, rervices and
property) if the transfer is free from conditioni and it ir probable that the economic
benefits or rervice potentrar rerated to the arret wilr flow to the entity and can be
measured reliably. Recurrent trants are recognized in the Jtatement of comprehenrive
income. Development/capitsl trants are recognized in the ,tatement of financial poJition
and realired in the rtatement of comprehensive income over the urefur rife of the a,ret,
that ha, been acquired uring ruch fundr.

R.endefing of rervlces

The entity recognizes rerrenue from r€ndering of services by reference to the rtate of
completion when the outcome of the traniaction can be ertimated reliably. The stage of
completion L measured by reference to labour hours incurred to date aJ a percentage of
total ertimated labour hours.

where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, rwenue is recognized only to
the extent that the expenre, incurred are recoverable.

Jale of goodr
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the rignificant risks and rewardr of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer. usually on delivery of the goods and when the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it ir probable that the economic benefitr or
rervice potential arsociated with the tr!nJaction will flow to the entity.

lntercst lncome
lntereJt income is accrued uring the effective yield method. The effective yield discountr
ertimated future carh receiptJ through the expected life of the financial arret to that rrret., net
carryinS amount. The method appries thir yield to the principar outstanding to determine
interest income each period.

l0
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L4 KE BAS| N D EI' ELO P M E,\T A UT HO RIT''
Atrtrurl Rcporh .nd FitrrDcisl Strtcmctrts
For thc yc!r cndcd Jurc 30,2023.

NOTET TO THE FINANCIAL fTATEMENTS (Conttnud)

Summary of Slgnlffcant Accountlng Pollcler (Contlnued)

ll) Ranenue from exchange tranJEctlonr

Rental lncome

Rental income arising from oPerating leates on invettment proPertiet is accounted for on

a straiSht-line basis over the leaJe terms and included in revenue.

b) 8ud8et lnformatlon
The original budget for FY 2022-2023 was approved by the National Assembly on /
Aprit 2O22. Subsequent revisions or additional appropriationt were made to the

approved budtet in accordance with specific approvals from the approPriate authoritiet.

The additional appropriations are added to the oriSinal budget by the entity upon

receiving the retpective approvals in order to conclude the final budget.

The Authority'r budget is prepared on a different baJit to the actual income and

expenditure disclosed in the financial ,tatementt. The financial statements are prepared

on accrual baris using a clattification based on the nature of exPenJe, in the statement of
financial performance. whereas the budSet i, Prepared on a cash basis. The amountJ in the

financial statement, were recatt from the accrual baJiJ to the cash basis and reclalsified by

preJentation to be on the tame basis as the approved budget. A comPariton of budget

and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable baris to the approved budget, is then

presented in the Jtatement of compariron of budget and actual amountJ.

ln addition to the Basis difference. adiurtmentt to amountt in the financial statementt are

also made for differencer in the formatr and classification schemes adopted for the

presentation of the financial ttatementt and the aPProved budget'

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the

statement of comparison of budSet and actual amountt and the actualt aJ Per the

rtatement of financial performance has been presented under tection /2of these financial

rtatementr.

lt
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L,tKE BASI n' DEt'ELOP ttE.\7' A L.'THORt|-t'
Arnurl Rcports rDd FiDrncirl Strtemctrts
For thc ycar cndcd Jurc 30,2023.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL
Summary of Slgnlffcant Accountlng pollcler (Contlnued)

STATWENTI (Contlnud)

c) T!xe5

Cument lncome tax
current income tax arsets and riabirities for the current p€riod are measured at the amount
exP€cted to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax lawr uJed
to compute the amount are thote that are enacted or rubrtantively enacted, at the reportint date in
the area where the Entity op€rates and generater taxable income. Current income tax relatint to
items recognized directly in net artett iJ recoSnized in net arJetj and not in the ,tatement of financial
performance' Manatement periodically evaluater poritionr taken in the tax retumr with rerpect to
situationt in which applicable tax regulationr are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Defered tax
Deferred tax il provided uring the liability method on temporary difference, between the tax bases
of arret, and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purpore' at the reportint
date.
Deferred tax liabilitier are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except in rerpect of
taxable temPorary differencet associated with invertment, in controlled entitiei, ajrociate, and
interertr in joint ventures, when the timing of the reverral of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverre in the forereeable
future.

Deferred tax arset, are recognized for aI deductible temporary differencer, the carry forward of
unused tax creditJ and any unused tax losrer. Deferred tax aJret, are recognized to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences. and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unuJed tax losres can be utilized.
excePt in resP€ct of deductible temporary differences asrociated with invertmentr in controlled
entities, asrociate, and intereJtr in joint venturej, deferred tax asretr are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differencer will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax arretJ ir reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it ir no longer probable that ,ufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax atJet to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax asset, are re-assessed at each
rePortin8 date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profitJ will allow the deferred tax arset to be recovered.
Deferred tax arrets and liabilities are mearured at the tax rater that are expected to apply in the year
when the arret ij realized or the liability i ettled, bared on tax rater (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or rubrtantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relatint to item, recotnized outride surplus or deficit ir recognized outride ,urplu, or
deficit. Deferred tax item, are recognized in correlation to the underlying tranraction in net arretJ.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitieJ are offset if a legally enforceable right exirtr to set off
current tax aJsets aSainrt current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxer relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

t2



L4 KE BA SI N D EY ELO P M EN?' A T IT TI O R ITY
ADtrurl Reports rtld Finrltcisl Slatements
For thc ycsr.trdcd Junc 30,2023.

NOTET TO THE FINANCIAL JTATEMENTS (Contlnud)

Summary of Slgnlficant Accountlng Pollcies (Continued)

hlet tax
Expenses and atrett are recognized net of the amount of sales tax' except:

i) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which cate, the ,alet tax is recognized aJ part of the cost of
acquitition of the asset or at Part of the expense item. as applicable

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of ,aleJ tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority i5

included a, part of receivables or Payables in the ttatement of financial position.

d) lnvettment property

lnvestment properties are measured initially at cost, includinS tranJaction cotts. The carrying

amount includes the replacement cort ofcomponents of an exirting investment proPerty at the

time that cort is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the cotts of day-to-day

maintenance of an invettment prop€rty.

lnvestment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction i5 measured at it, fair value

at the date of acquisition. subJequent to initial recognition. investment ProPerties are

measured u5in8 the cost model and are depreciated over a 3o-year period.

lnvestment prop€rtier are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the

invejtment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or

service potential iJ expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disPosal

proceeds and the carrying amount of the ajset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the

period of de-recotnition.
Transfen are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equlPment

All prop€rty. plant and equiPment are Jtated at cost les, accumulated depreciation and

impairment lorrer. cost includer expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquitition of
the itemi. When ritnificant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced

at intervals, the entity recognizet Juch Partt as individual aJjetr with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a maior inspection is performed, itJ cott is

recotnized in the carryinS amount of the plant and equiPment aJ a replacement if the

recognition criteria are tatitfied. All other repair and maintenance costi are recognized in

surplur or deficit as incurred. Where an astet i5 acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil

or nominal contideration the asret is initially measured at itt fair value'

Depreciation on PPE is calculated using reducinS balance method and the rater used are:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

0
c)
h)

i)

n
k)

Tractor5 ......

..... ..12.5o/o

.............37.5o/o

Motor Vehicles/Cycles ............... ...................25.Oo/o
Farm lmplements 12.5o/o

-.2.Oo/o8uiIdings..................
Loose Tools & Equipment .....
Furniture, FiftinSs & Fixtures .,

Office Machines & Equipment ...

Computer &Other Class ll Equipment ........
Plant & Equipment...............
Computer Software..............

.......................12.5o/o
.....................12.5o/o

.3O.Oo/o

-.12.5o/o

20.Oo/o

lO.Oo/oHyacinth Harvester.....

l3



LA KE BASI N D EI' ELO P I'IENT A UT H O RITY
Aonurl Rcports rDd Fitrrncirl Stttcmcltas
For thc ycrr c[dcd Jurc 30,2023

NOTE TOTHE
Summary of Signlffcant Accounflng pollcles (Confinued)

FINANCIAL TTATEM ENTS (Conffnud)

f) learer
Finance leases are leases that tranJfer rubrtantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to
owneRhip of the leaJed item to the Entity. Arretr held under a finance lease are capitalized at the
commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leared property or, if lower, at the prerent value
of the future minimum lease payments. The Entity alro recognizes the arJociated lease liability at the
inception of the leare. The liability recognized is measured ar the preJent value of the future
minimum leare payment, at initial recognition.

Subrequent to initial recognition, leaJe paymentJ are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease liability to at to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining Lalance
of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held
under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the arset. However. if there i, no
reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownerrhip of the arJet by the end of the lease term.
the arret iJ depreciated over the thorter of the eJtimated ureful life of the airet and the lease term.

Operating leases are leasei that do not tranrfer Jubrtantially all the rirks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the Entity. operating lease payments are recognized as an
operating expense in rurplur or deficit on a ,traight-line baris over the leare term.

d lntanglble asret
lntangible astetJ acquired teparately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible arretr
acquired in a non-exchange tranJaction ir therr fair value at the date of the exchange. Following
initial recognition. lntangible atsett are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development cortr' are not capitarized and expenditure is reflected in surpru: or deficit in the
period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible arret, i, arrerred ai either finite or indeflnite

h) Reseanh and dar€lopment cort
The Entity expenrer research costr as incurred. Development cortJ on an individual proiect arc
recognized ar intangible arretj when the Entity can demonJtrate:
i) The technical featibility of completing the arret ro that the arret will be available for use or

sale

ii) lts intention to complete and it, ability to ure oruell the aJset
iii) How the arret will tenerate future economic benefits o ervice potential
iv) The availability of rerourcer to <omplete the aJret
v) The ability to mesrure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recotnition of an arret, the arset i, carried at cort rerr any accumurated
amortization and accumulated impairment lorJei. Amortization of the aJset begin, when
development is complete and the ailet is avairabre for use. rt ir amortized over the period of
expected future benefit. During the period of dwelopment, the aJret i, tested for impairment
annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplur or deficit.
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I;l KE BASlr" DEI'ELOP MENT A UTHORITY
AnDurl Rcports rrd Finrocirl Stcaemcnts
For lhc ycrr.trdcd Junc 30,2023.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT| (Contlnud)

Summary of Signlficant Accountlnt Pollcles (Contlnued)

l) Flnanclal lnrtrument,
a) Flnancial sttet,

lnltlal recotnltlon and measurement

Financial aiJett within the ,coPe of lP5A5 29 Financial lnttrumentr: Recognition and

Mearurement are classified aJ financial atsett at fair value through turPlut or deficit, loans and

receivables, held-to-maturity invettmentt or available-for-tale financial as5et5, as appropriate.

The Entity determines the clatlification of itJ financial astets at initial recognition.

loanr and recelvabler

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial aJrets with fixed or determinable payments

that are not quoted in an active market. After initisl measurement, such financial asgett are

subsequently measured at amortized cott using the effective interett method, lest impairment.

Amortized cost it calculated by takint into account any discount or Premium on acquitition and

feer or corts that are an integral part of the effective interett rate. Losses arising from imPairment

are recognized in the surplut or deficit.

Held-to-maturlty.
Non-derivative financial astets with fixed or determinable Paymentt and fixed maturities are

classified as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive intention and ability to hold it to

maturity. After initial meaiurement. held-to-maturity invettments are mearured at amortized

cort using the effective interert method. lest impairment. Amortized coJt iJ calculated by taking

into account any ditcount or premium on acquitition and fees or costs that are an integral part

of the effective interert rate. The losset arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or
deficit.

lmprlrment of finandal aJJet

The Authority arreries at each reporting date whether there is obiective evidence that a financial

arset or an entity of financial assetr is impaired. A financial atJet or a entity of financial attett i5

deemed to be impaired if. and only if. there i5 obiective evidence of imPairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recotnition of the asset (an incurred 'loss

event') and that losr event has an impact on the ertimated future cath flowt ofthe financial attet

or the entity of financial assett that can be reliably estimated' Evidence of impairment may

include the following indicatoru:

i) The debtors or an entity of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty.

ii) Default or delinquency in interett or principal Paymentj
iii) The probability that debtort will enter bankruPtcy or other financial reorganization.

iv) Observable data indicates a meaturable decrease in ertimated future cash flows (e.g.'

changes in arrears or economic conditiont that correlate with defaults)
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L.lIiE BASI I\' I )EI' ELOP IIIE,\'T A (,'TIIORIT''
Arnurl Rcports rDd Fitrrocirl Sartcmcnts
For tbc ycrr ctrdcd Juoc 30,2023

NOTE TOTHEFINANCIA
Summary of Slgnlflcant Accountlng pollcles (Contlnued)

L tTA TEM ENTS (Con tt n ud)

b) Flnanclal ltabtllfles
lnltlrl rccogrltlon and meaJurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
throuth rurplu, or deficit or loans and borrowings. a, appropriate. The Entity determines the
clatsification of its rinancial liabilities at initial recoSnition. All financial liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable tranlaction
coJtr.

toans rnd bororplng
After initial recognition. interest bearint loans and borrowingr are JubJequently mearured at
amortized cost usint the effective intereJt method. Gains and lorses are recognized in surplus or
deficit when the liabilitier are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method
amortization procerr. Amortized cort ir calculated by taking into account any diJcount or premium
on acquirition and feer or costr that are an integral part of the effective interejt rate.
,) lnventorlet
lnventory is measured at cost uPon initial recoSnition. To the extent that inventory was received
through non'exchange tranractionr (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is
its fair value at the date of acquisition. costs incurred in bringint each product to itr present
location and conditionJ are accounted for, ar follows:
a) Raw materiaL: purchase cort urint the weighted average cost method.
b) Finished goods and work in progrers: coJt of direct materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on the normar operating capacity but excruding borrowing
costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is mearured at the lower of cort and net realizable value.
However' to the extent that a clasr of inventory i, distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that cla$ of inventory is mearured at the lower of cost and current replacement
cort.
Net realizable value is the ertimated selling price in the ordinary course of operationr, lerr the
ertimated costi of completion and the estimated cost, nece,iary to make the sale, exchange. or
diJtribution.
lnventorier are recognized aJ an expenre when deployed for utilization or conrumption in the
ordinary course of operationr of the Authority.

k) Provlslons
Provisions are recognized when the Entity ha, I present obligation (legal or conrtructive) a, a rerult
of a part event, it i, probable that an outflow of rerourcer embodyint economic benefits or rervice
Potential will be required to tettle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

where the Entity expe<t'ome or a[ of a provision to b€ reimburred, for exampre. under an
insurance contract. the reimbursement i, recognized ar a Jeparate asret only when the
reimburrement is virtually certain. The expenre relating to any provigion is prerented in the
ttatement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.
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Ll K E BASI N D ET E Lo P A,T E NT A IJT H O RI T''
ADDusl Rcports .nd FiDrtrcisl Slrtemcnts
For lhe yc.r cndcd Jutrc 30, 2023.

NOTB TO THE FINANCIAL JTATEMENTS (Contlnud)

Summary of Slgnlficant Accountlng Pollcles (Continued)

l) Contlngent llaHlltlg
Lake Basin Development Authority does not recognize a contingent liability but discloseJ details of
any contintencies in the notes to the financial ttatementr, unless the Portibility of an outflow of

rerources embodying economic benefitJ oruervice potential is remote.

. ln rerpect to the Govemment loan of l(sh 2.ooo.0oo,ooo,8iven to the Authority,this was a

bailout to asJirt the organization offset/settle the outrtandinS debt owed to Ll,/s Erderman

Property Ltd ; the appropriate records will be maintained and interest charged accordingly as

there is evidence of a loan agreement between the Government and Lake Basin Development

Authority(LBDA)

o Currently the Authority ha, no contractual agreement signed directly with Co-operative bank

of Kenya. The borrower of the loan was M/5 Erderman Property Ltd who it the contractor for

the Mall. However we have initiated the process of taking over the Loan by writinS to the

Ministry and the National Treasury for approval. co-operative Bank of Kenya has further

written an offer letter requestinS the Authority to take over the liability.

o The Authority has an accumulated loan interert provision of Ishs. 581.25 Million for

Govemment of lknya Loan.

o LBDA has various legal cases which are under litigation pending court rulinS! which if

adjudicated and finalized can cryitalize into future financial liabilities of approximately 4OOM.

Additionally, the increase in legal charger in the financial year 2022/2023 of Kshs. 99

million was as a result of court awards from previous litiSation.

. During the FY 2022/2023 the Authority took over KosFlP project with liabilities of

khs.738,774,372 which has not been recognized in our books pending budgetary provi,ion

by the National Treajury.

m)Contlnsent arr€t,
The Lake Basin Development Authority doer not recognize a continSent asset but discloseJ details

of a possible asiet whore exirtence is contintent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or

more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notet to the

financial statementr. Contingent asretJ are arserred continually to enrure that developments are

appropriately reflected in the financial statements. lf it hat become virtually certain that an inflow

of economic benefits or service potential will arise and the aJret't value can be measured reliably.

the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the financial ,tatementt ofthe Period in which

the change occurJ.

n) Natur€ lnd purporc of rerrves
The Lake Basin Development Authority createt and maintains reserves in terms of specific

requirementt. Lake Basin Development Authority maintaint Revaluation reterver.

o) Changes ln accountlng Polldet and estlmrtej
The Lake BaJin Development Authority recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy

retrosp€ctively. The effects of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if

retrospective application it imPractical.
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U KE BASI N I)EI'ELOP MENT A T;THORTT'
AnDurl Raports rDd FitrrDcial Strtcmcras
For ltc ycrr.Ddcd Jurc 30, 2023.

NOTE TOTIiE
Summary of Slgalflcant Accountlng pollcles (Contlnued)

FINANCIAL TTATEM ENIT (Conttnud)

p) Emplolree benetrtr
Retlrement beneff t plans

The Lake Basln Development Authority providet retirement benefitr for its employees and directorr.
Defined contribution prans are port-emproyment benefit prans under which an entity pays fixed
contributiont into a teparate entity (a fund), and will have no legal or conrtructive obligation to
pay further contributionr if the fund doer not hold ,ufficient ariets to pay all employee benefitr
relating to employee tervice in the current and prior periods. The contributionr to fund obligations
for the payment of retirement benefitr are charged against income in the year in which they
become payable.

Defined benefit plans are port-employment benefit plan, other than defined-contribution plans.
The defined benefit fundt are actuarially valued tri-annually on the proiected unit credit method
basis. Deficits identified are recovered through rump sum payments or increaJed future
contributionr on proportional baJir to all participatint employers. The contribution, and lump sum
paymentJ reduce the post-employment benefit oblitation.
Salarler and Allowances
The safaries and allowances increaJe in financial year 2022/2023 of lGhs. 77 million arose as a
result of approved SRC baric Jalary rtructure for LBDA to implement in the financial year
2017 /2018 and 2018/2019 but due to the financial conrtraints the Authority war unable to
implement the rame. However, the Authority implemented it in the financia I year 2ol9/2o2o
and proceeded to sought allocation from the National rrearury for the pending two years. The
National Treasury allocated the money in the financial year 2022/2023 aj per the printed
eJtimates-

Q Fore@ cunency t.rtrjactlom
Transactiont in foreign currenciet are initially accounted for at the rulint rate of exchange on the
date of the trantaction. Trade creditorl or debtorr denominated in foreign currency 

"r" 
,"po.t"d 

"tthe rtatement of financial porition reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.
Exchange differences arising from the tettlement of creditorr, or from the reportint of creditor at
rate, different from thote at which they were initirlly recorded during the period, are recognized as
income or expenres in the period in which they arise.
r) Bonowlng costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying arset, as part of property, plant and equipment.
Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the arret ir b€int acquired or
conttructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when conrtruction of the
arJet i, complete. Further borrowint €ortr are chsrted to the rtatement of financial performance.
d Related partles
The Lake Basin Dwelopment Authority regards a related party ar a p€6on or an entity with the
ability to exert control individually or jointly, or to exercire sitnificant influence over the Entity, or
vice veRa. Membert of key manaSement arc regarded ar r€lated partiel and comprire the directon,
the CEO and senior manaterr.
t) 5eMce concesrlon Errantementt
The Lake Basin Development Authority analysel all aspects of service concession arrangements that
it enteB into in determining the apPropriate accountinS treatment and disclosure requirementJ. ln
Particular' where a private party contributet an aiJet to the 6rrangement, the Entity recogni2e, that
asset when' and only when, it controlJ or regulater the iervicer the operator murt provide together
with the asset, to whom it mujt provide them, and at what price.
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L4 KE BASI N D EI'ELO P M EN?' A I IT H O RI1'Y
AnDurl Rcports rtrd FiDrtrcirl Strtcmc[ts
For thc ycrr ctrdcd Jutr. 30' 2023.

ln the case of assett other than 'whole-of-life' assets. it controls, throuSh ownerrhip, beneficial

entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interett in the asiet at the end of the arranSement,

Any asretr so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an a55et has been

recognized, the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjutted by a cash conrideration

paid or received.

u) Clsh and csth equhralentJ

Carh and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and

highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily

convertible to known amountJ of cash and are subject to insiSnificant risk of changes in value. Bank

account balances include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various commercial

bank at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of these financial ,tatementt, cash and cash

equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorited public officers and/or

institutiont which were not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

v) Comparattve ffgure;

where necessary comparative figures for the previour financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in preJentation.

w) Sub,r€quent errentJ

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a tiSnificant imPact on the

financial statementt for the year ended June 30,2023.

5. SlSnlficlnt Judgments and Sourres of Estlmatlon Uncertalnty

The preparation of the Authority's financial rtatement, in conformity with lP5A5 requires

management to make judgmentr, estimatei and assumptions that affect the rePorted amounts of

revenuer, expensel, arJetJ and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitiet, at the end of the

reporting period. However. uncertainty about theJe atsumptiont and estimates could retult in

outcomer that require a material adiurtment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected

in future periods. State all judgement5, estimates and asrumptions made:

E tlmrter and rrJumptlon,
The key assumptionr concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reportint date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adiustment to the carryinS amountl

of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its

arrumptionJ and estimater on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements

were prepared. However, exiJting circumstanceJ and arsumptionJ about future dwelopments may

change due to market changes or circumstancer arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such

changes are rellected in the aJtumptions when they occur. IPSA5 l.l4O

Useful lives and resldual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

The condition of the aJset based on the artestment of experts employed by the Entity.

The nature of the artet. its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and processes.

The nature of the processes in which the a55et is deployed.

Availability of fundint to replace the asset.

Changes in the market in relation to the asJet.

Prorriloru
ln the Financial year under review there were no Provisions raised and management determined an

ertimate bared on the information available.
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LAKE BASIN DEYELOPMENT AUTHONTY
Arnrd Rcportr rtrd FlDrlchl St.tcmclts
For tLc r crdcd Jnnr 20it3.

NOTB TO THE FtNANctAt frATEl,ttr{It (Conttrud)
6. Tnnsftn fi,om Other Crorrcmment Entlfict

Futrdt twld br t*unent a(Fndttue r.e t rrtr6 and Fooner emoruments & Detelopment
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAI tTATEltlfullT (Contlrud)
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9. Flnance lncome

lO. Other lncome
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UKE BASIN DEYELOPMENT AUTHORITY
ADnurl Rcportr rnd Fitrrtrchl Stracmcotr
For ahc yatr cndad Ju[a 30, 2023.

NOTBTO THEFINANCIAL f,IATEMElTl (Cottttrud)
ll. General Expenses
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LAKE BASIN DEVELOPMENT AWHONTY
Arrrrl Rcport! a[d Firrnchl Statcmcots
For th. ycrr .trdcd Jrnc 30, 2023.
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c) Ottcn(rpccify)

291.00 24,900.mc.drhhd
t05,321.00t0t,956.00Mpcsa
130"22r.m1v9.241,fiSub tot l

r92p75J42.rO277,l,9Ef66.14G nd totrl

NOTE TO THE FINANCIA L'TATEA,I ENT' (Contlnud)

20. (a) Detalled Analyslr of the Carh snd C.th Eqululents

21. (a) RecelvaHe, from Non-Exdurye Transactlotts

21. (b) Recelvabler hom Exchange Tnntlctlon,

Cltrraot rcccitruct
30,112Er, board dcbton

6,W,ffi4rruss& $!ffdcbton
t57A7rt,052299StdDobton

7t,6tr.2,657Trrdc Dcbtors
(534pr0)Lras: hovirbn br bad dcbts

7r9r5r55,143854Toad currclt rcccirtdct

C[rrcnt rccaireHcr

3ql12Er board dcbton
78,3,0,69eTrrdc Dcbtors
(534,0t0)l.es g: Prcvisiou for bad debts

17,726;t30Totd currelt receiEE€!

25



UKE BASIN DEYELOPMENT AWHORITY
AlDutl Rcport! rrd Flnrlclrl StrtGDGntr
For thc ycrr cldcd JIDG 30,2023.

NOTE TO THE F|NANCIA| STATELIE\ ttt (Cottttrued)
The provlslon for bad debts of lzshs. 534.080 relateJ to debtr over 2oyean old whose chances of
recovery rre remote. The expected lor ir ertlmated uslng default experience and analyrlr of the
debtor'r itstur some of whom were deceased at the reporflng d!te.

22. lnvertorlet

Gncrrl hardwarr
3,044,430

Automtivc !
6E7,762

and chcoi:ab 16,7$
Anind Fccdr

1,175
uoibnn aad rc,ln
Ct ah Itcnr

Statb!ubt
1,439,604

Scodr/Sced a 2147,8t 2,U20,674
&icb r09,635 I17,9m
Rlw EdGrirb 15,,t25,t69 r5,lt9J(B

MdcrirbP.c 1925,t22 t9t62t4
Fiabhcd Productr 129550 9,900

DEtorlcr n tc lorcr of cdt rdtrctrcdlzdcTotrl I
20,03t56,1 21524090
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UKE BASIN DEYELOPMENT AWHONTV
ADBo.l Rcpor6 rld Fh.lcirl Stttancrt!
For thr y..r ctrdcd Junc 30,2023.

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTT (Conttnud)

23. Property, Plant and EqulPment

m...i!!1---L:E-
5,t57.ttaJlL,t6ti a:t1au.t1,r)\rt1 n,*84 q{1,Jltan,y1ra1 tllllr:t15a2.fraJr! 1a2t'3a5,lraAr t.ll frt. ml

l!,7ll,ralt25r35 a,7{,,tt7Zt,WL 27,4n ?J,9O?rJ6

(l'.2r,A)(3,6X,000)

5,t!5,2aS.aallt,la5,!04 l,ll1*91rl,2lt t?2 t2,a!1,25t a+tr1,Jl1a24ra,rx ,'756tt7 ltatazl5rl5r,G3JlC i $n .,tr. 2t22
l(aaa,ta!@.na \7239 3r0r233.49L70{ ar,zrt2t

,,neu1 (aatt!.745aa,!17,4!t rl,r6aaaa2'.!55-lI tt,J\g !a,751att5r,G3,!l! tJux,w tlr,r7,aaa

DTrdd- -al.tlt-t
6.r94.29' to7l,6oa tlt.rlt.tto25,1r9,702 2!J50,91{lu5.fr1tlt laJ25J0t!().Jr,29'Ar t6 it. iQt
l,/o9,01. 1259,M1 ttel,l,Dt2,06C,Oel 9.Sa.Or25.23UU 461,67090I0r,45,t

Dipo.-

r53,E{,22t?,aa$ra l5Jt7,{tn2n-141 tqGim2,l,X\1' L,fr|,tT,3t455,753x !0d J.r. 2rZr
tt\3i1,D29L534 (5415i02.260,l5l 7.44O,6105.0r(5!6 5(x.9368aJCl.42!

2rrtl'l.. Lr.1,ta7,52tD,aal"tr, a\ar\r2 !,arltaa$,at2.r15a!!,llr,t7l 2a5rt{a35

5€,tt5,?x ar5(a5arr5*21r,8' n$trrt r55l,a3aazt t{ttstr !'ax55rx tdJu.2l2l 5r,5r,rlt {gLfrr,a !6,rt15!t
1t7r,r{t2ta2'atI,aa!t .5'a2rrxt 2ll,4t9 rrrL.'. D,at\t 1lca21rx ta1azr57a5rr51rEr \a,,,0\43
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I",IKE RASIN DEVELOPMENT AWHONTY
ADDIII Rcportr rnd Fhrlchl Strt.mc[tr
For 6. yc.r cDdcd Jtr. 30, 2023.

htlb r(4000 fi62fi
cowt 3,AW50 2,D5Jfi

Ilcifcrr 23c\t75 3,89250

sn374 45U47
w 9pt6,ll8 3,69$SO

Toad 15Jtt5r7 946t347

NOTETOTHEFI|IANCIAL STATEL1il||T (Conttrucd)
24- Blolotlcll Anet,

21. lntaqglble Asctr

26. (a) Trdc .rd Othcr PayaHcr (Curent)

Co.t
At306 Juc 2021 l1riit222
Addlbns-
At 30' Juc 2022 t143t222
Additione-

tu30'Jum 2023 1145t222
ADordzdard lrylrcnr
At 30lt Jlrc 202 I 69612r0
ADnizrtbn t,494.,N2

Ar 30' Jrr: 2C22 0y',60,5t2
Amrtiztbn u95n
At 30. Jrr. 2023 9ffiJ31
NBV

At 30r Ju: 2023 {J9t.0tt
At 30' Jrrc 2022 59975t0

StdO.;* (r*odm ao4rcnrrtb!) 57,1U,1X
Trrdc r l3/.100213 l0Jt2,r6t

triiddcr 191921,679 100rt2J5t
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lAKE BASIN DEVELOPMENT AUTHONTY
Atrr[al Report! r[d Fbr[clal StrtcEcltt
For thc ycrr cndcd Juoc 30, 2023.

2,ffi,@2,49B.N2,63 I,t5t372. o0Contnctor: Oaims

|,a2,om.fi183,1r6.60Garuiy & Tcrminal Ducs

2i,t?6,ut .3228,176, 1.32Intcr - Ministcrill Duc6

1.481,476.m\ts6,76t.Nt r.l Cbtu
r,554,14t.50Sqvix and utilitbs

l4,9D.ml5l,@5.mSta6Oairs (uodm co4cnsatbn)
It0,750.m49,130.mUErlEltcd Dlymll dcductbrs

,mI200,r@.r7535,t t 3, 159.42Tradc aupplicr:
2912.71t5163r0ro62934Tdd tr.& rdoatcr EyrI€l (Nm<lrrc )

NOTB TO THE FINANCIAL ITATEME|T| (Cqttnud)
26 (b) Trade rnd Other Payabler (Non{urrcnt)

lncluded in the trade payableJ above i, KJhJ.2.5 Billion loan ovved to CooPerative Bank/Erdemann

Ltd for which Authority Land tltle tR NO. 15239 0R. NO l5O'1430) is provided and charSed at a

collateral

26 (a&b) Tnde rnd Oth€r Payables

27. Employee Beneflt Obllgatlonr

Retlrement bene-ft turcV Llablllty
The Lake Basin Dwelopment Authority alro contributet to the ttatutory National Social Security Fund

(N55F). This ls a defined contribution rcheme r€girtened under the Natlonal Social Security Act. The

Authority'5 obligation under the ,cheme is limlted to specific contrlbutions legislated from time to
tlme lnd ir currently 8t Kshs. 1.08o per employee p€r month. other than N55F the entity also has a

deflned contribution scheme operated by LBDA Pension Fund. Employees contribute loo/o while

employers contribute 2O7o of basic ralary. Employer contribution, are recognised as expenses in the

rtatement of financial performance within the period they are incurred.

100J82, t 6tt9t924,679Tndc and othcrpaylbbs (Grcnt)
294Utt,5363201,0t2,934Tndc ad othcrpayabbr (!,hr+urrcnl)

3043J00J0433erpo15t3Tobl tn& rd oltcr Fyrucr

ELBL
,.(615!6!19n7!qad tG.a.5l|rli6

rtrrorJrl { ,1,{t la!!raJ,Id.+r. r.ft {aa-

-Gtr
-!
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I-AKE BASIN DEYELOPMEM AWHONTY
Arrlrl R.porE rDd FlrtDcLl Sart.m.ltt
For tlc yclr cDdcd JurG 3lt, 2023.

Domrtic bonowingr 2,000,m,000.m 2,00,m,m0.00
Bahncc at oad oftho prbd 2.m0flmoflr 2,000,0(x)r00

NOTE TOI'TiE Flt lAl,lclAl STAlEi,l E{lt (Coattnud)
28. Borrowlngl

The rnafses of both extemal and domestic borrowl ngJ rr1e aJ followr:

29. Clrh CJ€n€Et d ftorn Opentlons

3O. Flnandal RIsk Managemcnt
The Authority't lctfultle, expore it to a vlriety of ffnrndal rlskr lncluding credlt rnd llquidity rirk .nd
effectr of changer ln forelgn curency. The enfity's ownll rirk msnlgement protramme focuser on
unE€dlctablllty of changer ln the budners environment and ,eek to minlmlze tfie potmtirl ad\rlrra
eftct of such rltk on ltt performance by r€tting lc@ptable lerrels of rlrk. The entlty do€s not t|(dtr
any risk rnd hrr ln place pollcler to enrur€ thlt cr€dlt li onv extended to curtomen wlth !n
enaukhed credlt hlrtory.

The Authority', flnanclal dsk manrtement obrecthrer and pollcler are detailed belorrr:

l) Crcdltd*
Thc Authority hr5 exPotu.e to cr€dit rlrk whlch k the rlrk th.t r counterparty wlll be unable to pay
lmountt in full when due, Cr€dlt ritk lrlteJ friom cash tM carh equfualentr, .nd d€poriti wlth blnkJ.
ar well as tEde 8nd other receivables and avallable-for-rale financlal inveJtmentr. Msnagerncnt
ltt6teJ the credlt quallty of each cuJtomer, taklnt lnto account ltr flmnclal porltion, part experlence
and other factors. lndlvldual risk llmitt ar€ ,et based on lntemal or extemal assersment in accordlnoe
wlth limlts set by the dlrectoB. The amountJ pr€rented ln the rtatement of financial position are nct of
allowancer for doubtful receivables. estimated by the entlty's management bssed on prior experience
and their srrerrment of the current economic envlronment.

Dmtic Borrcirgr
aSh loo tron Tho Nrtbnd Tnrs em,00,0m.m 4m0,0(x)'m

Total balaco at ond oft[c ycrr 2,00o,mo,m0 2,000,000,txr0

Slrdrl frrtcylr &ct! (,9r534r6OJ,a) (r45ilJ 1297)
td for:

r r1,n6,fl3.9 r rr2rq?u.gt
Girr rod brrcr on dir ord of!rrct! 5,t2026,.m (4,@6275.@)

tEtrt ([,414241.00)
Worti tmtt
Docrprrc/lnopu c h bvcn 41t5,526.X 7&,t47.@
Docreuc/lncrpar e h roceivrbbs @2s4,n8.U) (2747 ,n6.71\
Docgro/Incrurtc ir pryrblct 3,+9906,90.90 49,163,424.t3
I{a cerl 0ow fro Wfirg rdriticr 17690992957 t2tAu527.1l
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l-4xE RASIN Dt-t I:LOP MENT ..lt t7'HORlr)
AnDual Reports and Finstrcirl Statcments
For the yerr eDdcd June 30' 2023.

NOTET TO THE FINANCIAL |TATEiY1ENIT (Contlnud)
Financlal Rlsk Management continued

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the entity's

maximum expoJure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained is

made up ar follows:

The cuJtomerr under the fully performing cateSory are payint their debts a, they continue tradinS.

The credit risk associated with there receivables is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible

amounts that the entity has recognized in the financial statementJ is considered adequate to cover any

potentially irrecoverable amounts

The board of directors setr the Authority'r credit policies and objectives and lays down

parameterJ within which the variout arpectJ of credit riJk management are operated.

iD liquidity rltk management

Ultimate responribility for liquidity rirk management reJt, with the Authority', directors. who

have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the entity',

5hOrt, medium and long-term funding and liquidity manatement requirements. The entity manates

liquidity risk throuSh continuous monitorinS of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the Authority under non-derivative financial

liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 monthJ equal their carrying

balances, as the impact of discounting is not tiSnificant.

iii) Martet rirk
The Authority har put in place an internal audit function to asrist it in assessing the risk faced by the

Authority on an ongoing baJiJ. evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its internal accounting

and operational controls.

Market risk is the rirk arising from changes in market priceJ, such at interest rate, equity Prices and

foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its holding of financial

inrtrumenti. The objective of market riJk manatement is to manage and control market risk exposures

within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for managinS

market risk restr with the Audit and Risk Management Committee'

The Authority's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk manatement

policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk ManaSement committee) and for the

day-to-day implementation of those policies. There has been no change to the entity's exPoJure to

market risks or the manner in which it manatet and measureJ the ritk.
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l.,'KE BlSIN DEVELOP MENT ATITHONTY
Annurl Rcportr rod Fi[rlcirl Strtcm.nE
For thc yarr andcd JuDG 30,2023.

NOTETO TI1EFINANCIAL |TAIEMEITI (Conttrud)

31. Rclated Party Dlrclorur€,

Netur€ of r€hted plrty rchfionrhlpJ

EntltieJ.nd other Partiei related to the entity include those p.rtier who have ability to exercire
control or exercise signiffclnt influence over its opersting and financial declJionr. Related parties
include management penonnel. their arrociate, and close famlly memben.
Gowmment of l(enp
The Govemment of lGnya i, the principar ,harehorder of Lake Barin Deveropment Authority, hordlng
10096 of the Authority'r equity interest. The Gov€mment of lQnya has provided full guarantees to all
lont-term lenden of the entity, both domertic and extemal.

Othcr rehtcd partles lnclu&:
i) The NEtlonal Govemmenti
il) The Parent Ministry:
ili) lcy Management
iv) Board of Dlrectors

31. Rdrted Party U$lo,rurc; confinucd

Nature of related party relationshi Pt

32. Suplus Rernlrslon
ln rccordance wlth Sectlon 219 (2) of th€ Publlc Financlal Manrgement Act .€gulsgonr, r€gulatory
entltler rhall r€mit into conrolidated Fund. ninety per centum of its surplus funds reportJ in the
audlted financial rtrtements after the end of each financirl year,
Lob &adn Daelqnent Autrrorrty dH ,Dt nakc any rupru durtttg tt,- year (Fy 2o22/;2o23 N[) .t d
lr€,te rD E t ltt trc to the Conelhtd Fund.

33. Eventr rfter the Reporflng perlod

There were no material adiurting and non- adJustlng events after the reporting p€riod.

Ifo,rctionr Eilt rlldcd Frticr
Grr t froo tie GoEnEll

Grats tou Natbnd Govt 1.056r/m.00 w,16j392
Crvcmcnt loan
Tdd I ,056r40,000 r40155302

m-b) rlioo
Ditrctorr' cmhrrnts 20,61t,82,. I t,,1tt,040

srtbr to thc CEO 6J@,000 6J54015
Tdd 2697tE22 2S,,2J25
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t IAKE BASIN DEVELOPMENT AWHONTY
AnD[rl Rcports rnd Fltrrnchl StrtcDGDt!
For ttc ycr r cDdcd Jurc 30, 2023.

NOTB TO THE HNANCTAL ITATE*lOlll (Conttrud)

34. Ultlmlte And Holdlng lake Earln Derrclopment Authotity
The Lake Easin Dwelopment Authority ir a State Corporation under the Ministry of East African

Community and Regional Dwelopment. lts ultimate parent is the Govemment of lGnya.

35. Cunency
The flnancial rtatementt ar€ prerented in lGnya Shillingr (Yshs).
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I,IKE BASIN DEYELOPMENT AWHONTY
Alnrtl RGporE trd Fh.tch! Strtaocrtt
For tlc yclr Grdcd Jrlc x,x23.

20. APPD.IDIX l: PROGRESS ON FOtfCnI/ Up OF AUDTTOR RECOMTV|EIDAT|ON,

The follor'ving ls the summary of irlues ralred by the exterml audltor. and man gement commentr thlt wer€ provlded to the audltor.

t.0

Unsupported
Tranrfer hom
Other
Gowmment
Entltlet

trrnifer, from tovemment en ty wat
Krh. 8,,10.455.302. Thtr lncluded fundtng from NElvtA, Red
Crors and P.rent Mlnlrtry on be*ralf of KOSFIp amounflng to
Krh. 13.255,3O2.

Hourever. the ttatemcnt of financlal performance rrfle<ts an
Emount of Krh.77O,455,302 dnce Ksh. 7O,OOO,O@ for iolar
lrrlgatlon prorect wlj capltallzed sr accordlng to tAs 2O and
ako lndlcated ln Note 6O) and in the rtstement of chrnges ln
N€t rrretr. under c.pltll grrnB/fund.
The Authorlty rccehrcd K$. I !5.OOO.O@ of developrnent
funds for FY 2O2ll2O22 whidr un; rcleared towardr thc end of
the llrunclal )rerr. ThlJ w.J the hrt tranche of development
fundr for drllllng & equlpplng of borcholes. The rame was
ported ln the development cash book on 3oth June 2022 and
full commltmmt done.
The Ksh. 7,982,577 r€ht6 to a rcfund ftom ,t!te Dep.rtment
for Reglonal Detrlopmmt belng expendlture lncurred by the
Authorlty on behtlf of KOSFlp. Thtr wa, at the tlme when the

to ISDA wlthout the correspondlng
werc rehte to Fy 2t21f2fr12. tlp l[,mc

a It ls true thlt the total

prolcct wcr trlntfer?ld
fundlng. Slnce the fuirdr

Managing

Director-

Onlolng.

Expected to be

resohrcd by
30n June

2022no23

a r,



F
UKE EASIN DEVELOPMENT AWHONTY
Anrd nr?ortr md n!t!c!rt Str&D. 3

For ttc r crdc(t Jlrc 30,2013.

\a

war recelptd in the retpecflve ffnancial year.

The management iJ commltted towards adherence of itt
budget to ensur€ compliance and achievement of ,€t Strategic

Obfectives.

Expected to b€

resolved by
3Ofr June

2022nO23

Dlr€ctor
Corporate
Services.

On-going

Unsupported

General
Expense;

i) Although the dally rubrittence allowance Paid to the three staff

exceeded Ksh, 2.q)o.OOO per each etaff, thit amount wa, not meant

for an individual officer. This is normally an imprest taken by one staff

member on behalf of other officers erPecially thoJe Soing for the rame

official duty. Thir ls meant to avoid the need of each offlcer ftllin8

hisi/her or,vn imprert whlch iJ cottly in termt of paper work and other

incidental bank coJts.

Howsver, each officer will procedunlly flll the necessary documentt

and submit the necerrary r€ceipt, to account for the imPrett taken only
that the payment voucher shall be in the name of the officer who took
the impren.
ii) All the relgrant legal files and related ma$er flleJ were presented

to the auditor at r€quettd includlng a schedule of all catet End thelr

Jtatur. There comprise of old caser whlch have been Soing on for a

long time. None of thele caser relate to the financial year under

revler.rr. The lncrease of legal fees by ksh 24.80O,OOO l5 due to
cryrtalllzation of @teJ.

The legal proferslonals were identified through the necetsary

prfiur€ment procers and prequalifled as legal professionals.

2.O

35



IJKE BASIN DEYELOPIIIEIIT /UTITaNTI
A.!r.l R.porE trd fr.rd.t Sttt rcrtr
For .lG crd.d J.rc 2air3.

Ankh V of the loan .grrernent b€t\^reen [BDA and GOK The
prsylrlon for lnteert expenre wrr to be chlrt?d at 596 on redudng
bahncc for a perlod of 3O ycan wlth 3 )re!r, gnce pedod rlt lnchrtuc.
It Ir to be computed on the barls of 36O day monthr and th€ lnter€Jt
rccrud o\rar the ffrit lre.r of th€ grrce p€rlod. Th€ lnter"rt rate on lorn
hrs not dranged slnce ruch changes arr prcmptly communlcated by the
Natlonal Tr€. ry.
It[ lt Ir tnre thc Auttrofi tncurred Krh lO,gZZ,l4l more for the
lnglrancr of lrretr. comp.rd to ttre pllvlou, )r€.r. Thl, rclate, to the
lnnrrancc of thc rnrll. The tnorur wu Focurud throuth quot!fionr.
Tlrc samc rrc hcnby rttrchcd for your audlt ruvlar iog:th:r wtth
lnrunncc pollcy documcnt.

Thr lnterBt on bank loen of Krh. l00,0O0.0fi) h Computed barcd on

3.O

Unsupportcd
Loss on Sele of
fur€t5

lrtnSlr o^rn€d by th€ Authorlty a, lndkrted bclorr.

Th€ lmount of Ksh. 3.621 .0O0 comprlre of parcel; of lands whlch no
lvtanaglnt
Dlrcctor

On-golng.

Expected to be
rcrohted by
3d June

2022no23

4.O

Unsupported
Uneamed

Rerrenue.
Krh. 33.918.404 has been rdnnrH and llnandal ,tlt€rn€nt, adrurH
accordlngly.

Thc Ksh.33.9t8.4O4
O$rllrg to pendlng a

wrlte.ofr.
Treasury

GOm ofCrcdItors c!rlltrpdrr forproposed
th.pploval Natlonaby the Wrlte ofofft

Managng
Dlrector Resohred

5.0
Unrupported
&perditurcon
Board of

tnarnrd un&r bolrd of Dlrccton rcmuncntlon. An analfrr of the

It Ir truG tfirt durtng thc yerr un&r rcvicrl a total of Klh. 18.488.O1O was

pald of lth. l0.Oft,4oo tsmectlng & allovrrancemeatlngr, purpore of
Mrnaglnt
Dnctor Resohred

lr
a t



l'
UKE BASIN DEVELOPMENT AWHONTY
Arrr.l n plrb rrd Ftnitrc{tl Stttco.ttr
For thc r Grdcd Julc 30,2021.

(

a

herebry attached. Alto attached for your audit r€vie\ / are beneficlarles

the alr ticketr of lGh. 5,192.343.

ofDirectort
Allowances

During the financial year 2O21nO22, thirty one boreholes were drilled'
installed & equipped and two were rehabilitated. One market was alrc

constructed. The details of the projects are hereby attached for your audit

reviaAr.

5.O

Unsupported
Contracted

Services

Managing
Dlrector

The 2 parcels of land -Kohranyo & LuSari LMC rwerted back to
the community and were removed from the assets regitter.The

parcel of land at kaptabet Brick plant was declared riparian and

also removed from the attets regitter with itt oriSinal cott.

The five pieces of land: Yala swamp, Sangalo ittc, Ndhiwa. Ronto
ittc, Lunyu/Kwanza lntegrated have been valued and i5 awsitinS

the ffnal report and adoption of the ,ame in the financlal

rtatementr,

It ii true the tittle for lower lGnyalouar wat not in the cuttody of
the Authority at the time of conducting the audit. However the

approvak ofthe same were done at the board of Directors level.

It ir tnre that iome of the Authority lands are not fenced.

Hovverrer, the manaSement has made a budgetary provision for
carrying out the raid activity ln the next ,lnanclal year 2023/2024

7.O

Land Wthout
Ownershlp
Document, and

U nsupported

Valuation

5 yeanManaging
Director

Not
R.esolved.

The Vehicles listed as per the artet reSltter were Siven to the

Authority by the then Ministry of East African Community
Un-transfened
Motor Vehiclet

8.O
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UKE BASN DEVELOPMENT IWHONTY
Arrrd R.?or! .ld nr..drt $rLncr!
For tlc ardJDG ,,t 21

follorlng up wlth th€ log books rnd later conrr€rrlon of thl,
vehlcler ftom Crovemment of K:nya to Blue numbrr pht6 h.,
becn lnttlated. Th. turo TlpFn ur€rr tramfund to the Authortty
by bke Vlctorla ErMmnmmtal tvLmgem.nt progamrn€
(LVEMP) ln January 2O2l for ure ln nemo\rll of wlter hyadnth ln
take Mctoria. The management has already communlcated to
LVEMP to tranrfer the r€rpcttrre logbook to the Authority.

Honrewr we t kc not€ of lrour obrcrvltlon and rhall engqge the
Chlcf Eqlneer hrbllc wor&s to condrrt wlurflon and adJurt our
ltrct lccodlngly.

a

Reglcnal Dar"lopmnt rnd Northcm Coridor and the procss of

9.O
Stalled Work ln
Prcgrers once th. final report lr rubrnltted by the profe'jlonal valuer. the

lmpllmEnt wlll bc dctcrmlned ard arrortlzed accordl

We tll(. note of your audlt obrcrvatlon. The arretr hlvt been wlucd and

ndy.

Manager
ftocur€m€nt R€rohred

lo.o

lont
Outstandlng
Receivabler

from
Non-Exchange
Transactlons

outrtardlng from a<-board memben lnd o(-rtrfr totlllng to X$. 3o.tt2
and 6.899,695 rcrpccttwly haw bc.n ouBtandlng for ovcr twatty !te!r,
lnd thrt thelr collcctfirtty l, rurnotc. The Authorlty wlll ttrerufoc confinue
mrklng provlrlon for wrlteoffs ln the rubsquent yean ln llnc wlth IpSAS
19.

The amount of Krh. 534,@O rehte to debtr hcld by deceased staff
ilcovrrlullty Ir remote ar per the rdredule tttached.

0 Ttr€ monat€ryient takel nofr of your obrervatlon ttrt the lmount

il)
whora

Human
R6outtas
M!mger

Not
Rerohred

t
a

./II
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t tlKE BAstN DE\/ELOPMENT AWEONIT
An.rl nrF.rt rltt nrnatrl ttbttll.lb
itr lt. .ndGd J!r. 30' 1023.

lil) The Authorlty has develoPed a financlal po

manual where o€dlt policy procduret & related matten have kn
addressed. The same rhall be adopted and implemented once the board of
Dlr€don' aPprover the ,ame,

iv) We have done ageing analysis for all our receivables and the same

is attached for your audit rwier,rr.

licy & Procedures

Not
Resolved

Managing

Director

i) lt'J true that mort of thete llabllitlet are old clalmr dating back to
earller financial years. The mtnagement has made concerted efforts of
puruinS fundlng from the National Treasury throuSh SuPPlementary

budgetary rcquestr on account of Pending billt. to enable them offset the

llabillties. ar a marorlty of the bills are hinorical ln naturc. Ho\ 16r€r. due

to lnrdequate funds. the debts stlll remaln outttandlng

ll) The amount of tax arrean of Ksh. 21.684.885 comPrits of interest

and penaltles on Corporation tax of which the Authority paid and cleared

the prtnclpal sum of KJh. 23,049,922 and tubtequently made an appeal

for walver of lnterest and penalty lerried, Howwer. the walver hai not

been granted and the Authorlty i3 still purulng the tame. The Elevant
waiver rEqueJt ir hereby sttached Annex 15 - tetter to KRA on Walver of
inter€tt

iii) Management tlkeJ note of your observatlon on GOK Loan

repayment. So far there haw been sarcral correlpondencer and

lnteBctionr between the Authority. Parent Ministry and the National

il.0 Non-Current
Liabllities.
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UKE BASIN DEYELOPMENT AWHONTI
Arr..l Rc?orts rrd Fhardd StttaDcrb
Por tlc crdcd Jr.r 34.2t23.

lppro\ral, have not been obrtalned rj the mrtter iJ aw.lfint due procerr.
Attrched please llnd corrgrpond€nce, Hureen I.BDA NaflLnal Treasury
rnd thc then Mlnlstry of Ean Affcan Communlty, Reglonal Darclopnrcnt
& Northem Corrldor. The Authorlty confinue, to hope for good wlll ftom
the Gov€mment to tlke o1rcr the lo!n.
tu) There was en lnct?rre in Tnde pry.ble, whlch b atHbuted to
accnred loan lnter€Jt of kh IOO.OOO.Ooo. Also affectlng the credlton
ffgure wat kh 33.918.404 proposed wrlte-off whlch hal slnce been
relnrtrted to the <redtton ll't. Cr€dltoE rmounflnt to kh 4,4g4,5g3 was

Trarury to haw the Authorlty takc owr the Ioan. Hourancr. due

durl thcP!ld ton8

'ttr
B6t Wertem. Duepp*iqr. Goundforce.n8r.

otrtdayr. and Verna.Prldcklngr. U/l8ot

t2.o
Unsupported
lncrearc ln the
Capttal Fund

Authortty by Mlnlrtry of ErMronm€nt & Natural Resourcer. Hence gMng
! n€t ll$re of Krh.59,220,64/'.

Jtf thrttrua the r ndcru revl6A,durlng )r!a tund ncreasedcrpitr Klh.by
70. (x)o000. b€l rolar tlon ctnt tn lesrirrlSr plt! Krh 7978n 0. 53 7

fortlon twothcdcpnda andtlppcrr hahyadnth n etter donatcd theto

Managng
Dlrector Rerohrcd

Not

X.y Audt M.ttc'rt
l.o F.llun to obr.n6tbn,vlitsr!$mant repaymcntt!Ier notr of onyour GOX ntor IvlanaSl On-tolng.

t
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U'KE BASN DEYELOPMENT AIJTHAUTY
Arml rcpoar md ttlrldd Slit5.!b
lor 6r cndod Jrro 3C' 2l4t

DlrectorThe challenge har been the cash florrr on the revenuet 8enerated from t
Mall. Currently the Mall occupancy it at 4O96.The re\renuet from the few

tenantr ir not adequate to pay the utllitlet and the loan lnterest.

Like any other entity. the operatlons of the Mall were disrupted by the

COVID-I9 pandemlc. Further. the delry ln comPletlon of Migosl ,unctlon
-Jvlamboleo interchange has also impeded potential customers from

taklnS up rpace.

Wlth the economy openlng up, manaSement has embarted on

engagement with variour budnesseJ, Sovemment agencies. and NGOs to
take up avallable space at the MEll.
Thlr will ln the long run Senerate adequate caJh inflov/t for the rePayment

of the loan.

heComply wlth
Loan

Agreement
Terms

R esohrred
ManaSlng
Director

The hlgh concentratlon of one ethnlc SrouP among LBDA emPlq/eet

is not by derlgn. but nther is largely determlned by the location of the

LBDA headquarten end the m.iority of its reSlonal offlcer.

Hor,vener. mEnasement i5 commltted to
staff by ethnicity rt Suided bY the

appllcable legltlatlons.

ejrurlng faimess ln balancing

donstltutlon of Kenya and

2.O

Non-Compllan
ce with the law
on Ethnic
Compolltlon

BailJ for Concluslon

Resolved

Dlr€ctor
Corporate
Services

lack of
Approved
lnformatlon
Technology

The Authority har an ICT Pollry ln place which wa, Pr€rented to
the board of Directon for approval. Horrrever the board

recommended that the same be rerrierrved by an extemal entity.

The same has been done and will be Pretented to the same board

t.o

4l



IAKE BASIN DEYELOPMWT AWHONTT
Arllrl R.poir rrd Fh.rdd Strt rcrE
For tG aldcd Jnr ,tar3-

Date:29/O9f2O23

L

Secudty Pollcy.

ln thc meantlme the ICT department lr bclnt gutded by the
8o\remm€nt ICT pollcy and departmental ltandard operafing
procdurcr.

a

forapprowl, rdofion end lmplcrncnt tlon.

2.O

tack of Rkk
Mrnagement
Poliry tnd
StrateSy

lppro^r(d ln July 2o2o.Furthcr thc AutMty has a risk reglrter
whlch was derrcloped ln 2OI9 and lln rwlevrred ln 2O2O.
The Audlt commlttee of the board rltfing on 5th lviay 2023
tpprcved the revtaled rkk pollcy and reglrter and r€comrrended
for full board appro\r!|.

Thc Authodty lur eshblkhed a rlsk rmnrgerr€nt pollcy tlut ural

tvlcrnber of

Orte.:29lO9nU3

L { lt

a



UKE DASIN DEYEIAPMENT AWHONTT
AD..l f.f.rt ia haillrtr

a

For E ylar..-.1Jr. tqto'.

2t. APPE{DX lll: RECORDTNG OF TRANjFEj FROM OTHER @\rERNMEl.rT ENTTnB

Mrtlry o, Era Aftttl
Commu ty. AJAB A
Rarbn l Del/cloDmGr Jlt'h23 Rcurrrr

6l7j{o,m

M*try otErt Antrl
Commldty, AJALr &
8!8bd DqrloDmcrl

Jur-23

Dadomc
a3q,m,m

ToId I,O56,2aO.Oo()
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